
   

 
 

 

NOTTINGHAM CITY COUNCIL 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 
Date: Wednesday, 20 June 2018 
 
Time:  2.30 pm 
 
Place: Ground Floor Committee Room - Loxley House, Station Street, Nottingham, 

NG2 3NG 
 
Councillors are requested to attend the above meeting to transact the following 
business 

 
Corporate Director for Strategy and Resources 
 
Governance Officer: Zena West   Direct Dial: 0115 8764305 
 
 

   
1  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 
 

2  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 

 

3  MINUTES  
To agree the minutes of the meeting held 16 May 2018. 
 

3 - 12 

4  PLANNING APPLICATIONS : REPORTS OF THE CHIEF PLANNER  
 

 

a   100 Woodyard Lane  
 

13 - 42 

b   Site Of Apollo Hotel PH, Hucknall Lane  
 

43 - 54 

c   54 Charlecote Drive  
 

55 - 62 

 

IF YOU NEED ANY ADVICE ON DECLARING AN INTEREST IN ANY ITEM ON THE 
AGENDA, PLEASE CONTACT THE GOVERNANCE OFFICER SHOWN ABOVE, IF 
POSSIBLE BEFORE THE DAY OF THE MEETING  
 

CITIZENS ATTENDING MEETINGS ARE ASKED TO ARRIVE AT LEAST 15 MINUTES 
BEFORE THE START OF THE MEETING TO BE ISSUED WITH VISITOR BADGES 
 
CITIZENS ARE ADVISED THAT THIS MEETING MAY BE RECORDED BY MEMBERS 

Public Document Pack



OF THE PUBLIC. ANY RECORDING OR REPORTING ON THIS MEETING SHOULD 
TAKE PLACE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE COUNCIL’S POLICY ON RECORDING AND 
REPORTING ON PUBLIC MEETINGS, WHICH IS AVAILABLE AT 
WWW.NOTTINGHAMCITY.GOV.UK. INDIVIDUALS INTENDING TO RECORD THE 
MEETING ARE ASKED TO NOTIFY THE GOVERNANCE OFFICER SHOWN ABOVE IN 
ADVANCE.



 

NOTTINGHAM CITY COUNCIL  
 
PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 
MINUTES of the meeting held at Ground Floor Committee Room - Loxley 
House, Station Street, Nottingham, NG2 3NG on 16 May 2018 from 2.31 pm - 
4.38 pm 
 
Membership  
Present Absent 
Councillor Chris Gibson (Chair) 
Councillor Brian Parbutt (Vice Chair) (minutes 8-9) 

Councillor Azad Choudhry 
Councillor Michael Edwards (as substitute) 
Councillor Rosemary Healy 
Councillor Gul Nawaz Khan 
Councillor Sally Longford (minutes 1-8) 
Councillor Mohammed Saghir 
Councillor Wendy Smith 
Councillor Malcolm Wood (minutes 1-7) 
Councillor Linda Woodings 
Councillor Steve Young 

Councillor Cheryl Barnard (sent substitute) 
Councillor Graham Chapman 
Councillor Josh Cook 
Councillor Jackie Morris 
Councillor Andrew Rule 
 

  
Colleagues, partners and others in attendance:  
Richard Bines - Solicitor 
Rob Percival - Area Planning Manager 
Martin Poole - Area Planning Manager 
Paul Seddon - Chief Planner 
Nigel Turpin - Team Leader, Planning Services 
Zena West - Governance Officer 
 
1  APPOINTMENT OF VICE-CHAIR 

 
Councillor Brian Parbutt was appointed as the Vice Chair for the 2018/19 municipal 
year. 
 
2  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

 
Councillor Cheryl Barnard – work commitments (Councillor Michael Edwards 
attending as substitute) 
Councillor Graham Chapman – Council business 
Councillor Josh Cook – Council Business 
Councillor Jackie Morris – Council business 
Councillor Brian Parbutt – Council business (attended from minute 7 onwards) 
Councillor Andrew Rule – work commitments 
 
3  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

 
None. 
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



Planning Committee - 16.05.18 

 

 
4  MINUTES 

 
The minutes of the meeting held 18 April 2018 were agreed as a correct record and 
signed by the Chair. 
 
5  MORRISONS SUPERMARKET, GREEN LANE 

 
Rob Percival, Area Planning Manager, introduced application 17/02258/PFUL3 by 
Peacock and Smith Ltd. on behalf of William Morrison Supermarket PLC, for a mixed 
use retail (Class A1-A3 and Class A1/A3) and leisure scheme (Class D2) comprising 
two units adjacent to Green Lane and five units adjacent to the supermarket building. 
The application was brought to Planning Committee because it is a major application 
on a prominent site where there are important layout and design considerations. The 
application was deferred from the 18 April 2018 meeting of Planning Committee to 
enable consideration of a technical appraisal of neighbouring residents’ 
representations concerning the Applicant’s Acoustic Assessment. 
 
Rob Percival gave a presentation to Councillors showing aerial views, maps with the 
layout of the supermarket and location of proposed building works. He highlighted the 
following points: 
 
(a) substantial representations have been received regarding the impact on 

neighbouring properties, particularly relating to the use of the proposed service 
access road. Environmental Health have assessed this impact, and their 
comments are contained within the report. Conditions have been included to 
limit those issues and concerns, and other possible servicing arrangements 
have been investigated, none of which are desirable; 

 
(b) the update sheet contains final representations from local residents, who 

raised concerns regarding vehicles parking or queuing on the access road. An 
additional condition has been proposed as a result of this concern; 

 
(c) as a Ward Councillor, Councillor Josh Cook lodged a written representation 

objecting to the proposal with the Chair of Planning Committee shortly before 
the start of the meeting. He did not attend the meeting as a member of 
Planning Committee and did not participate in the discussion or vote on the 
item. 

 
There were a number of questions and comments from the Committee, and some 
additional information was provided: 
 
(d) if access for the units near to the supermarket was from the front of those 

units, this would conflict with pedestrian access to the supermarket, and may 
prove to be hazardous. It was right to explore the option but it would raise 
safety issues; 

 
(e) an amendment was requested to the additional condition regarding delivery 

vehicles parking in the service access road, to also preclude them from waiting 
or idling on the access road; 

 

Page 4



Planning Committee - 16.05.18 

 

(f) as the boundary of the site is directly next to the access road, there would be 
no space to install a noise barrier without moving the access road; 

 
(g) whilst the conditions limit vehicles using the access road to rigid vehicles up to 

12 metres, the majority of vehicles using the service road are likely to be much 
smaller. The limit will prevent large HGVs from accessing the site in this way; 

 
(h) whilst there are a number of local gym facilities nearby, the development is 

welcomed and the overriding principle is supported. Assessments have not 
revealed any anticipated increase in Anti-Social behaviour issues relating to 
the presence of a gym. 

 
RESOLVED to: 
 
(1) grant planning permission, subject to: 

(a) prior completion of a S106 planning obligation which shall include 
a financial contribution of £30,000 towards improvements to the 
pedestrian link between the application site and Southchurch 
Drive;  

(b) the indicative conditions substantially in the form of those listed in 
the draft decision notice at the end of the report, and the update 
sheet; 

(c) the amendment of condition 8 to include “or waiting”, to read “the 
access road leading to the service yard, as amended by the 
requirements of condition 18, shall not be used for the parking or 
waiting of vehicles accessing the service yard at any time”; 

 
(2) delegate authority to determine the final details of the S106 planning 

obligation and of the conditions to the Chief Planner; 
 
(3) agree that the Committee is satisfied that Regulation 122(2) Community 

Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 is complied with, in that the 
planning obligation sought is: 

(a) necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms; 
(b) directly related to the development; 
(c) fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the development; 

 
(4) agree that the Committee is satisfied that the planning obligation sought 

would not exceed the permissible number of obligations according to the 
Regulation 123(3) Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010. 

 
6  43-55 LOWER PARLIAMENT STREET AND 1-7 GLASSHOUSE STREET 

 
Martin Poole, Area Planning Manager, introduced application 18/00227/PFUL3 by 
Rayner Davies Architects on behalf of Megaclose Ltd for the conversion of 43-55 
Lower Parliament Street to mixed use commercial and student accommodation, the 
demolition of 1-7 Glasshouse Street and development of a 5 and 6 storey student 
accommodation building. The application was brought to Planning Committee 
because it is a major application on a prominent city centre site where there are 
important design considerations. 
 

Page 5



Planning Committee - 16.05.18 

 

Martin Poole gave a presentation to Councillors showing pictures of the existing 
buildings from Glasshouse Street and Claire Street, and artists impressions of the 
proposed design for the new building. He highlighted the following points: 
 
(a) the proposal includes the demolition of 2 buildings on Glasshouse Street, to be 

replaced with a 5 and 6 storey building, and also to convert the upper floors of 
the gasworks building. The main entrance would be on Claire Street, and the 
Glasshouse Street frontage would use a variety of brick tones to give the 
appearance of separate buildings; 

 
(b) a number of representations have been received, including concern regarding 

the loss of the existing buildings. The Lace Market conservation area was 
recently expanded to include the gasworks building, but not those on 
Glasshouse Street – this block of buildings has therefore been considered in 
terms of its heritage value in great detail quite recently. The buildings which 
will be demolished are not listed, nor in a conservation area, but they have an 
architectural quality which would require a replacement of the highest quality. 

 
There followed a number of questions and comments from the Committee, and some 
additional information was provided: 
 
(c) committee members opinions were divided regarding the proposed 

replacement buildings. Some councillors liked the proposed replacement 
buildings and some disliked them. There was general agreement that the 
buildings to be demolished were unique and had an architectural quality which 
would be missed, however it was acknowledged that the committee had no 
power to prevent their demolition, merely to decide on the buildings which 
would replace them. It was also noted that the buildings to be demolished had 
not been used in some time, were in a state of disrepair, and could not be 
easily converted to student accommodation. It was suggested that approval of 
the design of the replacement buildings be delegated, as the committee 
agreed that the current proposed designs were not of a suitable quality to 
replace the building being demolished; 

 
(d) committee members requested details on proposed cycle storage and 

recycling facilities. Cycle storage is proposed, and can be ensured through 
conditions. Whilst there is provision in the scheme for waste disposal, it does 
not go into detail regarding recycling; 

 
(e) committee members requested that no matter the form the replacement 

building takes, that the blue plaque in place on the existing building for famed 
pie maker TN Parr can be salvaged and installed on the replacement building; 

 
(f) the Prysm Nightclub has raised concerns that residents of the new student 

accommodation may lodge noise complaints. This has been addressed in the 
conditions, with a requirement for noise insulation. Environmental Health feels 
that there won’t be a particular issue, and there are other residential properties 
nearby which have not experienced noise issues with Prysm; 

 
(g) committee members debated whether to postpone a decision on this item until 

the next meeting of Planning Committee after a more suitable design had 

Page 6



Planning Committee - 16.05.18 

 

been submitted, or to approve the scheme and delegate the final design to the 
Chair, the Vice Chair, and an Opposition spokesperson in consultation with the 
Chief Planner. The committee opted for the latter option. 

 
RESOLVED to: 
 
(1) grant planning permission subject to: 

(a) delegation of approval of the final design and appearance of the 
Glasshouse Street frontages to the proposed development to the 
Chair , Vice-Chair and Opposition Spokes Person in consultation 
with the Chief Planner; 

(b) prior completion of a Section 106 planning obligation to secure: 
(i) a public open space contribution of £19,396.36 towards 

infrastructure improvements to Robin Hood Chase green 
corridor; 

(ii) a highways contribution of £10,000 towards improved cycle 
access along King Edward Street; 

(iii) a student management plan, to include restrictions on car 
use; 

(c) the indicative conditions substantially in the form of those listed in 
the draft decision notice at the end of the report, and conditions 
requiring the provision of adequate cycle and waste recycling 
storage (if not already provided); 

 
(2) delegate authority to determine the final details of both the conditions 

and the section 106 obligation to the Chief Planner; 
 
(3) agree that the Committee is satisfied that Regulation 122(2) Community 

Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 is complied with, in that the 
planning obligation sought is: 

(a) necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms; 
(b) directly related to the development; 
(c) fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the development; 

 
(4) agree that the Committee is satisfied that the planning obligation(s) 

sought that relate to infrastructure would not exceed the permissible 
number of obligations according to Regulation 123(3) of the Community 
Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010. 

 
Councillor Malcolm Wood requested that his vote against the above resolutions be 
recorded. 
 
7  PEMBERTON STREET 

 
Rob Percival, Area Planning Manager, introduced application 14/01992/PFUL3 by 
Gracemachin PP on behalf of PSG SIPP Trustees Ltd and PSG SSAS Trustees Ltd 
for the erection of student accommodation. The application was brought to Planning 
Committee because it is for a major development on a prominent site where there are 
important design and heritage considerations. 
 

Page 7



Planning Committee - 16.05.18 

 

Rob Percival gave a presentation to Councillors showing an aerial view of the site, 
the backdrop of the Lace Market and neighbouring cliffs, and photos of the site from 
various angles. He also included drawings of the proposed development in a wider 
context with previously approved neighbouring schemes. He highlighted the following 
points: 
 
(a) a key drive of the design has been to keep it to an appropriate height and 

scale to ensure the Lace Market escarpment view remains. The proposed 
development is predominantly brick, with bronze coloured aluminium window 
frames. Where the building faces neighbouring properties it steps down to 2 
stories, and has windows angled away from those properties; 

 
(b) the intention was to create a “background building” which will blend into the 

background and landscape. This has been fairly challenging given the site’s 
prominent location on a roundabout. Historic England have seen positives in 
redeveloping this important site, but they have expressed concerns regarding 
the scale. The Nottingham City Council Conservation Officer and the 
Nottingham Civic Society are supportive of the scheme and its simplicity; 

 
(c) the building features a corner entrance, with a garden area at the rear which 

also contains cycle storage; 
 
(d) objections were received from Highways colleagues, these are detailed in the 

update sheet and have been addressed by additional conditions. 
 
There followed a number of questions and comments from committee members, and 
some further information was provided: 
 
(e) some Councillors felt the building blended in as a background building very 

well, but did appear to be a large flat square of brown, with little detailing. 
Planning colleagues confirmed there were some subtle breaks in the 
brickwork, but that the images did not convey this adequately; 

 
(f) committee members discussed the need for further student accommodation, 

and the possibility of future-proofing any student developments in case 
demand dropped. Planning colleagues confirmed that student accommodation 
has very low vacancy rates, with demand expected to rise, and that the 
student studio apartments could be converted internally to combine them into 
apartments should the need arise; 

 
(g) information was requested regarding recycling provision at the site. Whilst 

waste disposal has been considered, detail on how recycling specifically would 
be managed was not available; 

 
(h) the Section 106 contribution is determined by the number of bed spaces, and 

will contribute to off-site public realm improvements; 
 
(i) a previous design incorporated a rood terrace where the building dropped to 

two storeys, however this was removed from later proposals due to the 
possibility of it overlooking neighbouring properties; 

 

Page 8



Planning Committee - 16.05.18 

 

(j) the building sits slightly above ground level, to mitigate flood risk. The stairs 
and ramp at the entrance will also help to slow foot traffic out on to the busy 
pavement; 

 
(k) there are concerns in the London Road area around air quality. As a result 

there will be no bedrooms on the main frontage to London Road, with all 
ground floor rooms facing Pemberton Street. The development does also 
remove a car park. Air quality management requirements apply to the whole 
site, as with any city centre development; 

 
(l) committee members discussed whether to delegate details of the final design, 

and there was some discussion and disagreement regarding the 
appropriateness of delegating final details. Planning colleagues reassured the 
Councillors that any delegations only apply to detail on a scheme, not to the 
substance of a scheme. Committee members agreed to delegate the final 
design decision to the Planning Committee Chair, Vice Chair and an 
opposition spokesperson, in consultation with the Chief Planner. 

 
RESOLVED to: 
 
(1) grant planning permission subject to: 

(a) delegation for the approval of the final design and appearance of 
the London Road frontage to the proposed development to the 
Chair, Vice-Chair and Opposition Spokes Person in consultation 
with the Chief Planner; 

(b) prior completion of a section 106 planning obligation which shall 
include: 

(i) an off-site financial contribution of £14,125.61 towards 
public open space for the Cliff Road / Sussex Street area; 

(ii) a student management scheme, which shall include a 
restriction on car usage; 

(c ) the indicative conditions substantially in the form of those listed in 
the draft decision notice at the end of the report and the update 
sheet, as well as conditions requiring the provision of adequate 
cycle and waste recycling storage (if not already provided); 

 
(2) delegate authority to determine the final details of both the terms of the 

planning obligation and the conditions of planning permission to the 
Chief Planner; 

 
(3) agree that the Committee is satisfied that Regulation 122(2) Community 

Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 is complied with, in that the 
planning obligation sought is: 

(a) necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms; 
(b) directly related to the development; 
(c) fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the development; 

 
(4) agree that Councillors are satisfied that the section 106 obligation(s) 

sought would not exceed the permissible number of obligations 
according to the Regulation 123 (3) Community Infrastructure Levy 
Regulations 2010. 

Page 9



Planning Committee - 16.05.18 

 

 
Councillor Malcolm Wood requested that his vote against the above resolutions be 
recorded. 
 
8  LAND EAST OF TRENT LANE 

 
Martin Poole, Area Planning Manager, introduced application 17/01930/PFUL3 by 
CPMG Architects on behalf of Pelham Waterside LLP for the erection of 73 dwellings 
(50 houses and one block of 23 apartments), a new access road, landscaping, 
parking and boundary treatments. The application was brought to Planning 
Committee because  it is a major application that is recommended for approval, but 
where any planning obligations are proposed to be waived, or are substantially less 
than typically required by adopted planning policies. 
 
Martin Poole gave a presentation to Councillors showing aerial views of the site, 
photos of trees neighbouring the plot, and drawings of the proposed layout and 
building design. He highlighted the following points: 
 
(a) the scheme considers possible future developments near to the site and 

considers potential linkages; 
 
(b) the scheme contains two and three storey buildings, with different architecture 

but a similar architectural language to nearby schemes. The boundary 
treatments have also been considered carefully; 

 
(c) concerns have been raised from nearby businesses regarding their use of 

noisy machinery in industrial units, and the potential for noise complaints from 
future residents. These are detailed in the update sheet, and conditions 
include noise insulation measures such as screens, walls or fences. 
Colleagues from Environmental Health are satisfied. 

 
Following questions and comments from the committee, some additional information 
was provided: 
 
(d) committee members felt that electric charging points for vehicles were positive, 

and requested detail on any charging points available for the apartments, 
along with further detail on recycling and cycle storage provision. Planning 
colleagues did not have this information to hand; 

 
(e) grant funding is available to ensure that 20 of the properties will be affordable 

housing, which is more than would typically be required on a development of 
this size; 

 
(f) more than one designated parking space has been provided per unit, parking 

has been carefully considered given issues on nearby developments with 
commuter parking; 

 
(g) local employment for construction will form part of the planning obligations; 
 
(h) acoustic fencing usually takes the form of a heavy wooden fence of an 

appropriate height to block a noise source. Awareness of neighbouring 

Page 10



Planning Committee - 16.05.18 

 

buildings and possible noise issues will be the responsibility of potential buyers 
or tenants of the properties, who should make their own enquiries; 

 
(i) the scheme contains a slightly more conventional layout to existing schemes in 

the area, with driveways to the front of houses. 
 
RESOLVED to: 
 
(1) grant planning permission subject to: 

(a) no new material issues being raised as a result of the further 
consultation with neighbouring and surrounding properties; 

(b) prior completion of a Section 106 planning obligation to include 
measures to ensure that development of adjacent land is not 
prejudiced and to facilitate a future further highway connection to 
Waterside Way; 

(c) the indicative conditions substantially in the form of those listed in 
the draft decision notice at the end of the report and additional 
conditions requiring: 

(i) the submission and approval of acoustic fence details for 
specific properties and post-completion verification that 
internal and external noise levels are not exceeded; 

(ii) the provision of adequate cycle and waste recycling storage 
(if not already provided); 

 
(2) delegate authority to the Chief Planner to determine the final details of 

the conditions; 
 
(3) agree that the Committee is satisfied that Regulation 122(2) Community 

Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 is complied with, in that the 
planning obligation sought is 

(a) necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms; 
(b) directly related to the development; 
(c) fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the development. 

 
9  GRASSINGTON ROAD 

 
Rob Percival, Area Planning Manager, introduced application 17/01099/PFUL3 by 
Ellis Williams Architects on behalf of The Girls’ Day School Trust for construction of a 
sports pavilion, two floodlit artificial pitches, car parking facilities, a coach drop-off 
point and re-siting of a portacabin. The application was brought to Planning 
Committee because it has shown significant public interest.  
 
Rob Percival gave a presentation to Councillors showing aerial views, historical 
photos of the site, current photos, plans for the site and earlier iterations of the 
scheme. He highlighted the following points: 
 
(a) the main change from the earlier design is the orientation of one of the larger 

pitches, to avoid issues with the floodlights affecting neighbouring properties; 
 

Page 11



Planning Committee - 16.05.18 

 

(b) the update sheet details the objections to the scheme. It is proposed that the 
pavilion will contain community facilities, which are currently lacking in this 
area. 

 
There followed some questions and comments from the Committee, and further 
information was provided: 
 
(c) the floodlit pitches are now around 70 metres away from the nearest 

neighbouring property, with smaller non-floodlit properties situated closer; 
 
(d) there is some local concern regarding noise, especially in relation to the coach 

drop-off area. There will be some changes for residents of neighbouring 
properties, but Planning colleagues feel that there will not be a major impact. 
Conditions control the hours of use of the facilities; 

 
(e) the school would have use of the pavilion during the day, so any community 

use would be limited to non-school hours. 
 
RESOLVED to: 
 
(1) grant Planning permission subject to the conditions substantially in the 

form of those listed in the draft decision notice at the end of the report; 
 
(2) delegate authority to determine the final details of the conditions to the 

Chief Planner. 
 

Page 12



 
 
WARDS AFFECTED: Wollaton West  Item No:  
 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 
20th June 2018 

 
REPORT OF CHIEF PLANNER 
 
100 Woodyard Lane, Nottingham 
 
1 SUMMARY 
 
Application No: 18/00060/POUT for outline planning permission 

 
Application by: Michael Davies on behalf of Nottinghamshire County Council 

Pension Fund 
 

Proposal: Demolition of existing buildings and the erection of up to 110 
dwellings and means of access. 

 
The application is brought to Committee as it is a major application where there are 
important land use considerations and because it is subject to a S106 obligation. 
 
To meet the Council's Performance Targets this application should have been determined 
by 18th April 2018. 
 
2 RECOMMENDATIONS 
  
2.1 GRANT PLANNING PERMISSION subject to: 
 

(a) Prior completion of a section 106 planning obligation which shall include: 
 

(i) The requirement to provide 20% affordable housing should any subsequent 
reserved matters submission comprise of 25 dwellings or more. 

(ii) A Financial contribution towards education. 
(iii) On-going management and maintenance arrangements for the on-site 

public open space, other amenity land and Sustainable Urban Drainage 
System. 

(iv) A financial contribution of £3,350 towards the improvement of the footpath 
link between the site and Lambourne Drive (through the former Canal 
Basin). 

 
(b) The indicative conditions substantially in the form of those listed in the dra

 decision notice at the end of this report. 
 

2.2 The Power to determine the content and requirements of the S106 agreement be 
delegated to the Director of Planning, Regeneration and Housing  in consultation 
with the Committee Chair, Vice-Chair and opposition spokesperson, and be subject 
to him being satisfied that the requirements of Regulations 122 and 123 of the 
Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 are met. 
 

2.3 The power to determine the final details of the conditions be delegated to the 
Director of Planning, Regeneration and Housing. 

 
 

Page 13

Agenda Item 4a



 
3 BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 The site is located in the Wollaton West ward It is largely rectangular in shape and 

is approximately 3.94 hectares in area. It consists of three employment buildings 
and hardstanding on the eastern part of the site and a private sports ground on the 
western part. Siemans previously occupied the site for offices and manufacturing 
(Class B1and B2) but relocated in December to a new site in Nottingham City. 

 
 3.2 The site includes an area of private open space i with no public access. The open 

space was historically used by Siemans employees for recreational use, however 
the space has been fenced off and has been out of use for over five years. 

 
3.3 The site is bound to the north by the railway line (with the Glaisdale Road Industrial 

estate beyond), to the east by Woodyard Lane and existing residential dwellings to 
the south and west on Lambourne Drive and Far Rye respectively. The mature 
landscaped area of the former Canal Basin adjoins the south western edge of the 
site. 

 
3.4 The site’s only access is from Woodyard Lane. This is a narrow single-track road, 

which is adjoined by residential development to the east and mature trees to the 
west, which are subject to a Tree Preservation Order (TPO). Beyond the access to 
the site to the north, Woodyard Lane forms a bridleway, which crosses the railway 
and links through to the Wigman Road roundabout. 

 
3.5 Mature trees edge most of the site boundaries and those to the western boundary 

are subject to a TPO. The site also sits within two Archaeological Constraint Areas 
and falls within a Minerals Safeguarding Area. 

 
4 DETAILS OF THE PROPOSAL 
 
4.1 This application is seeking outline approval for residential development of the site 

with access arrangements being the only detailed matter submitted for approval at 
this stage. The submission however includes an illustrative masterplan, which 
indicates that approximately 110 dwellings could be accommodated on the site. 
The development would be served by the existing vehicular access from Woodyard 
Lane, which is proposed to be improved. 

 
4.2 The illustrative masterplan includes areas of public open space, the retention of 

existing mature trees around its edge and sustainable urban drainage. 
 
5 CONSULTATIONS AND OBSERVATIONS OF OTHER OFFICERS 
 

Adjoining occupiers consulted: 
 
82 Neighbouring properties on the following streets have been notified of the 
proposal:  
 
Lambourne Drive 
Far Rye 
Tom Blower Close  
Charlbury Road 
Hallowell Drive 
 
The application has also been publicised through the display of a site notice and 

Page 14



 
the publishing of a press notice. 
 
Ten local residents and the Nottingham Local Access Forum have written in with 
the following concerns: 
 

-  Woodyard Lane currently takes the form of a narrow single width road. There is 
concern that the road is too narrow to accommodate the traffic associated with 
the development.   

- The junction of Woodyard Lane / Tom Blower Close / Lambourne Drive is 
considered to be dangerous.  The lack of sightline (particularly when 
approaching southeast on Lambourne Drive), its narrow swan neck layout and 
3 into 1 triple T-junction shape of the junction caused regular conflicts when 
Siemens operated from the site. Regular use of the junction area for parking of 
delivery, postal and maintenance vehicles, and parking overspill from the 
Kingswood Methodist Church, often exacerbates the problem. There is concern 
that any increase of traffic using the junction would result in a collision 
hotspot. Residents request that the junction is redesigned as part of the 
development and should include parking restrictions in the immediate junction 
area.  

- The Transport Assessment has missed an important point by counting ‘peak 
hour trips’. It has failed to fully account for the direction of trips. Siemens traffic 
was into Woodyard Lane in the morning; commuter traffic from the new 
development will be out of Woodyard Lane, and will therefore add to traffic from 
Lambourne Drive and Tom Blower Close.  The reported conclusion that “the 
proposed development would significantly reduce vehicle flows from the 
development site” is therefore selective; total volume may decrease, but peak 
directional flow will increase, and traffic from Siemens was negligible in 
evenings and weekends, whereas traffic from the development will be more 
significant through the day and week.   

- Another resident has raised concerns that the Traffic Assessment has 
neglected to consider traffic impact on Torvill Drive and its western exit onto the 
A609, which directly runs through from Lambourne Drive. Given the potential 
increase in traffic in both directions they consider its lack of inclusion to be 
significant. The Traffic Assessment should also consider the potential 
implication of increased traffic along Torvill Drive resulting from increased trip to 
the major supermarket on the A609.  

- Notwithstanding the traffic assessment, which has been based on a single day 
in June, residents consider that traffic at the traffic light controlled junction of 
Lambourne Drive and Wollaton Road to be busy and often queued. They 
consider that this has been exacerbated by the recent addition of  the Co-op 
and additional care homes, which have led to parking on both sides of 
Lambourne Drive.  Residents feel that consideration should be given to 
extending the ‘double yellow lines’ on one side of Lambourne Drive further from 
the junction of Wollaton Road, to reduce congestion and ‘head to head’ vehicle 
conflicts. 

- No consideration has been given to the improvement for cyclists as part of the 
development. This should integral to the submitted Travel Plan and would be 
seen to compensate for potential increases in vehicular traffic.  

- Residents are seeking the assurance that the fence line of properties along the 
eastern edge of Woodyard Lane with Tom Blower Close would be respected. A 
detailed assessment of land ownership along Woodyard Lane is requested. It is 
believed that the existing eastern fence line along Tom Blower Close does not 
reflect the true landownership between the Woodyard Lane and abutting 
properties. 

Page 15



 
- Seek an assurance that any road works to Woodyard Lane would not affect the 

levels and increase surface water drainage for adjacent properties on Tom 
Blower Close. 

- Removal of trees to the eastern side of Woodyard Lane would remove shading, 
increase road pollution and reduce bird habitat for properties on Tom Blower 
Close. They also state that these trees might be located with the ownership of 
Tom Blower Close properties. 

- The use of a wider shorter new access road into the site from Hallowell Drive 
should be considered. 

- Concern that the Traffic Assessment does not include access and parking for 
construction traffic during the implementation phase of the development; 
particularly when Woodyard Lane is being worked on and access not possible.  

- The closure of the informal gated access from Tom Blower Close is welcomed. 
One resident of Tom Blower Close considers that the fence between the Close 
and Woodyard Lane should be replaced with a 2m fence. 

- Residents feel that the traffic assessment does not take into account the fact 
the use of Woodyard Lane has a heavily trafficked bridleway and cycle route 
between Wollaton Park and the Beechdale Road/Hollington Road/Wigman 
Road area. They state that traffic at the weekend traffic form Siemens is light 
and is predominantly heavy at commuter times during the week, affording full 
use of the road by pedestrians and cyclists. It is considered that use for 
residential traffic would be more evenly distributed through the week resulting in 
increased pressure on this road and pedestrian/cyclist safety. 

- The housing density shown on the indicative masterplan is seen to be high. 90 
dwellings is considered to be the optimum number. 

- Impact on local schools and healthcare facilities, which are already 
oversubscribed. 

- Noise and air pollution through the construction phase and as a result of 
increased traffic movements. 

- Generic errors in the Statement of Community Involvement – these have been 
rectified. 

- The site is seen as an important green corridor linking the railway embankment 
with the local nature reserve and allotments to the west of Lambourne Drive. 
The north-south corridor needs to be given more prominence and the open 
space on site seems to be a token gesture. 

- The acoustic fence along the railway line is welcomed to reduce noise from the 
industrial estate to the north. 

- Concern regarding the improved footpath link through the old canal basin and 
impact on security for existing residents. It is suggested that this area remains 
as existing to reduce impact on wildlife. 

- Given that the Nottinghamshire County Council Pension Fund concern has 
been raised that the beneficiaries of the pension fund should not be taking part 
in the decision making process.  

 
Additional consultation letters sent to: 
 
Environmental Health and Safer Places: No objections. Conditions requiring a 
remediation strategy, implementation of the submitted sound insulation scheme, 
(which could include a 3m acoustic barrier along the line of the railway) and electric 
vehicular charging points are recommended. 
 
Highways: No objections. Conditions relating to a construction management plan, 
details of the proposed vehicular and pedestrian access and removal of redundant 
crossings are recommended. The applicant is required to work with the Council with 

Page 16



 
regards the implementation of Traffic Road Orders on Woodyard Lane to protect 
the access and maintain highway safety. 
 
Drainage: No objections, subject to development of the site being carried out in 
accordance with the submitted Flood Risk Assessment. 
 
Biodiversity Officer: No objections, subject to the development being carried out 
in accordance with the recommendations of the submitted ecological appraisal. The 
appraisal should be updated prior to submission of the reserved matters 
application. 
 
Tree Officer: No objections. Access proposals would involve the removal of trees 
to the eastern edge of the highway and this would be acceptable, subject to trees 
being replaced at a ratio of 2:1. An aboricultural assessment and tree protection 
measures are required by condition. 
 
Sport England: No objections. 
 
Environment Agency: No comments. 
 
City Archaeologist: The site encompasses two Archaeological Constraint Areas, 
both of which represent locks of the former canal. The archaeological potential for 
the site is not confined to those Constraint Areas. An archaeological field evaluation 
should be required as a condition of planning permission. 
 
Nottinghamshire Wildlife Trust: No objections. The Trust are satisfied with the 
submitted ecological appraisal and the design of the attenuation basin to enhance 
biodiversity. 
 
Parks and Open Spaces: The development has satisfactorily addressed Policy R1 
in the adopted Local Plan. An improved footpath link should be secured through the 
old Canal Basin; currently this is unsurfaced. An improved green link should be 
created between the two areas of open space to provide continuity along the line of 
the old Canal Basin. The area of informal open space in the southeast corner of the 
site is considered to be satisfactory. 
 
Network Rail: No objections. An informative on any subsequent planning 
permission is requested relating to development in close proximity to railway land. 
 
The Coal Authority: The site falls within a defined Development High Risk Area 
and potential coal mining features and hazards need to be considered in relation to 
the determination of the application. Coal Authority records indicate that there are 
four mine entries on or within 20m of the site boundary. The site is also in area of 
likely historic unrecorded coalmine workings at shallow depth. The planning 
application is supported by a Coal Mining Risk Assessment. The report 
acknowledges that coalmining legacy issues present on and in close proximity to 
the site.  The report therefore recommends that intrusive site investigations should 
be carried out for both the mine entries and shallow coalmine workings.  These 
would be expected to include gas monitoring and/or a gas risk assessment.  
 
 
 
 
 

Page 17



 
6 RELEVANT POLICIES AND GUIDANCE 
 

 
National Planning Policy Framework (March 2012)  
 
The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) sets out the Government’s 
planning policies. While planning applications still need to be determined in 
accordance with the development plan unless material planning considerations 
indicate otherwise, the NPPF is a material consideration in the assessment of this 
application. 
 
The NPPF advises that there is a presumption in favour of sustainable 
development. Paragraph 17 of the NPPF lists the core planning principles that 
should underpin decision making on planning applications. Of particular relevance 
to this application is the need to secure high quality design and a good standard of 
amenity for all existing and future occupants of land and buildings. Paragraph 49 
states that housing applications should be considered in the context of the 
presumption in favour of sustainable development. 
 
Paragraphs 56-64 of the NPPF sets out the approach for achieving good quality 
design, including responding to local character, creating a strong sense of place 
and resisting poor design that fails to take opportunities to improve the character 
and the quality of an area. 
 
Paragraph 111 states that planning decisions should encourage the effective use of 
land by re-using land that has been previously developed. 
 
Nottingham Local Plan (November 2005): 
 
Policy ST1 – Sustainable Communities  
 
Policy E4 – Existing Employment Sites 
 
Policy H2 – Housing Density  
 
Policy H5 – Affordable Housing 
 
Policy R1- Open Space Network 
 
Policy R2 – Open Space in New Development  
 
Policy R5 – Playing Fields and Sports Grounds 
 
Policy BE16 – Archaeological Constraint Areas 
 
Policy NE3 – Protected Species 
 
Policy NE5 – Trees 
 
Policy NE6 – Trees covered by a Tree Protection Order 
 
Policy NE9 – Pollution  
 
Policy NE10 – Water Quality and Flood Protection 

Page 18



 
 
Policy NE12 – Derelict and Contaminated Land  
 
Policy T3 – Car, Cycle and Servicing Parking  
 
 
Aligned Core Strategy (ACS) (September 2014):  
 
Policy A - Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development  
 
Policy 1 – Climate Change  
 
Policy 8 – Housing Size, Mix and Choice  
 
Policy 10 - Design and Enhancing Local Identity 
 
Policy 11 – Historic Environment 
 
Policy 14 - Highways 
 
Policy 17 – Biodiversity  
 
Policy 19 – Developers Contributions  
 
Emerging Local Plan (Land and Policies Document) 
 
The site is allocated in the emerging Local Plan (part 2) for residential use (PA). 

 
7. APPRAISAL OF PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT 
 
 Main Issues 
 

(i) Principle of the development and loss of Open Space Network; 
(ii) Density, layout and scale; 
(iii) Relationship with adjoining residential properties 
(iv) Highway considerations; 
(v)  Planning obligations. 

 
i) Principle of the development and loss of Open Space Network (NPPF, 
Policies A, 10 and 8 of the Aligned Core Strategy, Policies ST1, E4, H2 and R1 
and R5 of the Local Plan) 
 

7.1 The site is currently vacant employment land but lies within an area, which is 
residential in character. It is allocated for housing development in the emerging 
(part2) Local Plan, the Land and Planning Policies Development Plan Document 
(LAPP) reference “PA35 Woodyard Lane - Siemens”. Whilst the application is in 
outline and therefore subject to details such as housing mix being agreed at a later 
stage the LAPP identifies the site for predominantly family housing and estimates 
the minimum, maximum and midpoint of expected dwellings are to be 90, 120 and 
105 dwellings respectively. The number of dwellings proposed in the outline 
application (110) is in line with this. Although the LAPP is not yet capable of being a 
material planning consideration in its own right it is at an advanced stage and sets 
out a clear direction for this site. The development of this vacant brownfield site for 
residential development in an established residential area in any event satisfies the 

Page 19



 
relevant policies of the adopted development plan, comprising the Local Plan and 
the Aligned Core Strategy. There is therefore no objection to the principle of the use 
of the site for a residential development. 

  
7.2 This is a vacant employment site, which is located within a primarily residential 

area, with residential properties to three sides. Woodyard Lane has a narrow 
carriageway, which is considered unsuitable for its use for heavy industrial traffic 
and by large vehicles normally associated with employment uses, particularly given 
it use by cyclists, pedestrians and residential traffic. Its long term use by Siemans 
has resulted in a building form which has been tailored to their business needs and 
is unlikely to be suitable for other employment uses. Its poor siting, access and 
building form are acknowledged through its allocation for housing in the LAPP. The 
proposal is considered to comply with Policy E4 of the Local Pan. 

 
7.3 The NPPF, Aligned Core Strategy and Local Plan policies support the delivery of a 

wide choice of high quality homes, the widening of opportunities for home 
ownership and the creation of sustainable, inclusive mixed communities. The NPPF 
states that Local Planning Authorities should plan for a mix of housing and identify 
the size, type, tenure and range of housing to meet local needs. The indicative 
layout put forward for consideration at this time is for a development of houses that 
would provide family accommodation with generous gardens, and a small element 
of apartments. Such accommodation would support the aims and objectives of 
policies ST1 and Policy 8 that support the provision of family housing.   

 
7.4 The western part of the site currently forms a disused private sports field and is 

allocated in the adopted Local Plan as part of the Open Space Network. As such, 
the proposal needs to be assessed against Policy R1 of the Local Plan.  

 
7.5 Policy R1 of the Local Plan seeks to protect the Open Space Network (OSN) from 

inappropriate development. The former sports field forms a small part of the OSN 
within the area and as a former sports field has limited landscape value. The area 
has been fenced off from use by employees for over five years and has always 
been inaccessible to the public. Development of the site is to be supported by the 
provision of new publically accessible open space and a large attenuation pond, 
both of which would be designed to enhance biodiversity. Mature trees, which edge 
the site and provide the highest level of ecological value, are to be retained to 
provide green corridors that link into surrounding parts of the OSN to the south, 
west and east, and the ecological rich rail corridor to the north. In addition, the 
development would facilitate improved accessibility into the old Canal Basin to the 
south and to Lambourne Drive beyond. These proposals align with the guidance for 
the site as set out with its allocation in the draft LAPP. 

 
7.6 It is therefore considered that the proposal would not have a detrimental impact on 

the environmental, landscape or wildlife values of the Open Space Network.  
 
7.7 Sport England have raised no objections to the loss of the former sports field given 

the length of time it has been disused.   
 
7.8 The proposal would therefore comply with NPPF, Policies A, 10 and 8 of the 

Aligned Core Strategy, Policies ST1, E4, H2 and R1 and R5 of the Local Plan. 
 
 
 
 

Page 20



 
(ii) Density, layout and scale (Policy 10 of the Aligned Core Strategy and 
Policies H2, T3, NE5 and NE6 of the Local Plan) 

 
7.9  All matters regarding site layout, scale and design of the proposed dwellings would 

be considered by a subsequent reserved matters submission. The application is 
however supported by an illustrative masterplan and detailed Design and Access 
Statement. 

 
7.10 The illustrative master plan shows the provision of 110 dwellings, which would 

deliver an average of 28 dwellings per hectare. The indicative housing mix 
comprises largely of three bedroom family houses with a smaller range of two, four 
and five bedroom dwellings; which reflects the character of the site and the largely 
family housing proposition in the surrounding area. A small apartment scheme is 
shown in the northeast corner overlooking the eastern boundary of the site and the 
bridleway beyond. The roads and built form reflect the general form and pattern of 
the surrounding area. A primary loop road served by the existing access from 
Woodyard Lane would provide vehicle access to the central part of the site, with 
secondary streets accessed from it. The layout also depicts an urban form 
consisting of detached, semi-detached and some terraced housing organised in 
perimeter blocks. Continuous frontages are proposed to define and overlook the 
streets. Building heights are be restricted to two storey along the sensitive western 
and southern boundaries of the site adjoining existing residential development. 
Central areas would also be predominantly two storey with allowance of increasing 
up to 2.5 storey where increased building heights could contribute towards the 
definition of keys buildings and spaces. Along the eastern edge with Woodyard 
Lane the ability for buildings to be three storeys in height is suggested to provide a 
strong built presence along this entrance edge. 

 
7.11 A key feature of the indicative masterplan is its retention and enhancement of 

existing green infrastructure around the edges of the site. The position of the new 
accessible public open space and attenuation pond in southern corner of the site 
would create an attractive open and green entrance into the site, provide the 
potential  for it to be framed key buildings and create a strong sense of arrival. 
Retained trees to the southwest corner of the site and the old Canal Basin open 
space beyond would be enhanced through the creation of additional green amenity 
space in this corner of the site. The provision of a ‘green’ street to bridge the two 
areas of open space would create a green link between remaining sections of the 
old Canal Basin. 

 
7.12 All existing trees on the site, including trees protected by a TPO along the western 

boundary are to be retained. An aboricultural method statement, to include tree 
protection measures and landscaping scheme, would be required by condition. 

 
7.13 It is therefore considered that the proposed development would comply with Policy 

10 of the Aligned Core Strategy and Policies H2, T3 and NE5 and NE6 of the Local 
Plan. 

 
(iii) Relationship with adjoining residential properties (Policy 10 of the 
Aligned Core Strategy) 

 
7.14  The indicative layout has taken into account the relationship between the existing 

and the proposed properties. It is considered that the relationship with the 
properties immediately adjacent to the site is acceptable and that the proposal 
would not unacceptably impact upon the amenities of the neighbouring occupiers. 

Page 21



 
The reserved matters submission would resolve the detail of the layout, including 
the boundary treatment to the edge of the site where it abuts existing residential 
properties. It is therefore considered that the proposed development would satisfy 
Policy 10 of the Aligned Core Strategy, in this regard. 

 
7.15 It is not considered that the loss of the semi mature trees to eastern side of 

Woodyard Lane would have an adverse impact on the amenities of properties on 
Tom Blower Close. The issue of landownership raised by objectors is discussed 
below. 

 
7.16 An informal footpath already runs through the site of the old Canal Basin. Plans are 

simply to resurface this with compacted loose stone to improve accessibility and 
help maintain the areas environment. It is not considered that the resurfacing of the 
footpath would have further impact upon the amenities of neighbouring properties. 

 
(iv) Highway considerations (Policy 14 of the Aligned Core Strategy and 
Policy T3 of the Local Plan) 
 

7.17 Access for vehicles and pedestrians would remain as existing from Woodyard 
Lane. Woodyard Lane currently measures 4.2m in width and has a 20mph speed 
limit. A 1.3m footpath runs along the western side of the carriageway to provide 
pedestrian access into the site. To the north of the site Woodyard Lane is 
downgraded to a bridleway, which proceeds towards Wigman Road/Hollington 
Road roundabout via the railway bridge. Demountable bollards prevent vehicular 
access occurring beyond this point. 

 
7.18 The access into the site is proposed to be improved with a block paved raised 

table. The access would be 5.5m wide with 2m footways, 6m radii and appropriate 
visibility splays. Woodyard Lane is to be resurfaced and widened to facilitate two-
way traffic movements and achieve a road width of predominantly 4.8 to 5m in 
width, with new street lighting. Traffic calming measures, in the form of two build 
outs are proposed to create a priority chicane arrangement. The existing footpath 
would be widened to approximately 1.6m in width.  The road would be designed 
with appropriate surface water drainage to avoid flash flooding of the existing 
highway and neighbouring properties. The road would be built to adoptable 
standards and secured through a Highway Agreement. 

 
7.19 The Woodyard Lane road improvements would require the removal of a series of 

semi-mature trees along the eastern side of the carriageway, adjoining properties 
on Tom Blower Close. The Tree Officer has confirmed the loss of these trees to be 
acceptable, subject to replacement street trees being provided at a ratio of 2:1. The 
group of trees to the west of the carriageway, which are protected by a Tree 
Protection Order, would be retained. The requirement for replacement trees would 
be dealt with by condition. 

 
7.20 Site ownership along the length of this part of Woodyard Lane has been 

investigated and the agent has confirmed that the works to the highway are in the 
adopted highway. The adopted highway plan does not appear to include all of the 
eastern verge. A condition is to be added to include details of works to the eastern 
verge to be agreed. Should there be any implications for land beyond the highway 
then this would be a matter for the developer to liaise directly with the adjacent 
landowner/s.  

 

Page 22



 
7. 21 An existing informal opening in the fence along Tom Blower Close is to be closed 

with fencing to match the existing. 
 
7.22 A Traffic Speed Order and Traffic Regulation Orders are proposed along the length 

of Woodyard Lane to prevent parking to either side of the carriageway, with double 
yellow lines to either side and reducing speed limits to 20mph. The applicant would 
bear the costs of their implementation. 

 
7. 23 No improvements are proposed to the junction of Woodyard Lane with Lambourne 

Drive. 
 
7.24 Local residents suggested that access to the site should be accessed from Halliwell 

Drive a small cul de sac serving two properties and is accessed directly off 
Lambourne  Drive. The applicant has stated that this access option involves third 
party land which is not available for use as part of the development. 

 
7.25 Highways are satisfied that the design for the proposed access would ensure safe 

access and egress into the site from the highway network. It is recommended that a 
condition is imposed to secure the delivery of the junction design and 
improvements to Woodyard Lane as indicatively proposed. 

 
7.26 In terms of potential traffic generation the scope of the submitted Traffic 

assessment has been agreed in consultation with Highways. Woodyard Lane 
previously carried traffic associated with the former Siemens site. These traffic 
movements were accommodated throughout the functioning life of the business 
and not only included daily vehicle traffic movements but also traffic movements 
associated with refuse collection and servicing. 

 
7.27 Highways are satisfied with the submitted Traffic Assessment and that the traffic 

created by this development would be acceptable and would represent a net 
reduction from its previous use. Additional comments made by local residents 
regarding the Traffic Assessment are currently being considered by the applicant’s 
highway consultant and the Highways team. A response will be reported to the 
meeting. 

 
7.28 Matters regarding the internal road layout and parking for the proposed dwellings 

are not maters for the consideration of Committee and would be considered as 
reserved matters. 

 
7.29 A Construction Management Plan would be conditioned to ensure the highway, 

pedestrians, cyclists and neighbouring residents are not adversely affected during 
the construction period. 
 
v) Planning obligations (Policies ST1, H5 and R2 of the Local Plan and Policy 
19 of the Aligned Core Strategy) 

 
7.30 For this development, the policy compliant planning obligations which would 

ordinarily be required are: 
  

• Provision of 20% affordable housing should any subsequent reserved 
matters submission comprise of 25 dwellings or more. 

• A Financial contribution towards education. 
• On-going management and maintenance arrangements for the public open 

space, other amenity land and Sustainable Urban Drainage System. 
Page 23



 
• A financial contribution of £3,350 towards the improvement of the footpath 

link between the site and Lambourne Drive (through the former Canal 
Basin). 

 
7.31 As financial contributions are calculated by reference to a policy-based formula 

reliant on the number of dwellings that will come forward in reserved matters, it is 
not possible to confirm the figures at this stage. The contributions will be secured by 
reference to the relevant formula in the Planning Obligation to be entered prior to 
the grant of permission. 

 
 Affordable Housing (Policy 8 of the Aligned Core Strategy and Policy H5 of 

the Local Plan) 
 
7.32 Policy H5 of the Local Plan sets out the requirement to secure up to 20% affordable 

housing on all new residential developments. In this instance, it is considered that 
the affordable housing provision should be provided on site. The final tenure mix of 
the affordable housing would be secured through the Planning Obligation and dealt 
with at the Reserved Matters stage.  

7.33 The applicant has agreed to the provision of affordable housing on site, however, 
they seek to offset the level of provision through the application of Vacant Building 
Credit (VBC). VBC came into force through the publication of national planning 
guidance in 2014 (subsequently revised in 2016). The VBC aims to provide an 
incentive for brownfield development on sites containing vacant buildings. Where a 
vacant building is brought back into any lawful use, or is demolished to be replaced 
by a new building, national guidance states that the developer should be offered a 
financial credit equivalent to the existing gross floorspace of relevant vacant 
buildings when the Local Planning Authority calculates affordable housing 
contributions. 

7.34 VBC applies to any building that has not been abandoned. In considering how the 
vacant building credit should apply to a particular development, Local Planning 
Authorities should have regard to the intention of national policy. In doing so, a 
Local Planning Authority should consider: 

• Whether the building has been made vacant for the sole purposes of re-
development. 

• Whether the building is covered by an extant or recently expired planning 
permission for the same or substantially the same development. 
 

7.35 In June 2017 Siemens served notice of their intention vacate the site and relocate 
to smaller premises at the end of a six month period. The applicant did not take 
steps to terminate the lease and as such, the buildings were not “made vacant for 
the sole purposes of redevelopment”. Furthermore, the site does not benefit from 
“an extant or recently expired planning permissions for the same or substantially the 
same development”. Siemens subsequently vacated the site in December 2017 for 
new premises within the city boundaries. 

 
7. 36 It is therefore considered the redevelopment of the site as proposed would meet the 

tests for the application of VBC. 
 

Page 24



 
7.37 The Gross Internal Area Floorspace (GIA) on the site has been determined to be 

5.280sqm.  
 
7.38 As affordable housing is calculated by reference to a policy based formula reliant 

on details to be covered in the reserved matters, it is not possible to give a precise 
indication of what the final affordable housing provision would be at this stage. 
However, the applicant has provided a calculation based on the illustrative 
masterplan. Using an average of 100sqm of floorspace per dwelling, they have 
calculated that the proposed 110 dwellings would amount to approximately 
11,000sqm of development. Without VBC the site would be required to provide 22 
affordable housing units. Using the VBC calculation they consider that the 
development would provide 11.4 affordable housing units (rounded up to 12 
dwellings). Whilst this gives an indication of the potential number of affordable 
dwellings to be provided on the site the Planning Obligation will once again secure 
the provision of affordable housing by reference to an agreed method of calculation. 

 
 Education (Policy ST1 of the Local Plan) 
 
7.39 In terms of education, the secondary schools are already experiencing capacity 

issues and consequently the development is going to increase pressure for school 
places.  Based on the indicative layout Education have provisionally indicated that a 
figure in the region of £535,809 would be required. The contribution, if required, 
would be used towards expanding the capacity of secondary schools in the “West 
Planning Area”, which includes Bluecoat Beechdale, Fernwood and NUSA.  

 
 Public Open Space (Policy R2 of the Local Plan) 
 
7.40 The public open space provision is based on the formula within the Council’s Open 

Space Supplementary Planning Guidance. The illustrative masterplan shows on-
site public open space which would meet these requirements for this development. 
The open space would be maintained by a management company. On-going 
management and maintenance arrangements for the public open space, other 
amenity land and Sustainable Urban Drainage System are to be agreed as part of 
the Planning Obligation. 

 
7.41 The proposed footpath contribution would be put towards the improvement of the 

existing footpath link, which runs through the old Canal Basin. This is proposed to 
improve pedestrian accessibility between the site (and new open space) and 
Lambourne Drive. 

 
7.42 In relation to all of the above obligations (including each of the named schools 

within the West Planning Area), the planning obligations sought would not exceed 
the permissible number of obligations according to the Regulation 123 (3) 
Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010.  

 
7.43 The obligations proposed would accord with Policy ST1, R2 and H5 of the Local 

Plan and Policy 19 of the Aligned Core Strategy.  
 

Other Matters (Policies 10 and 11 of the Aligned Core Strategy and Policies 
NE9, NE12 and BE16 of the Local Plan)  

 
7.44 Contamination, Coal Mining and Noise: (Policy NE9 and NE12 of the Local Plan): 

The requirement for a remediation strategy to deal with ground contamination and a 
noise assessment/sound insulation scheme to protect future occupiers of the site 

Page 25



 
would be secured by condition. Intrusive site investigations should be carried out for 
both coalmine entries and shallow coalmine workings, which again can be dealt 
with by condition. The proposals are therefore in accordance with Policy NE9 and 
NE12 of the Local Plan. 

 
7.45 Archaeology (Policy BE16 of the Local Plan): The submitted archaeology 

assessment has identified that the site sits within two areas of Archaeological 
constraint and has potential to contain archaeological remains. The Council's 
Archaeologist has requested a scheme for archaeological evaluation, which can be 
secured by condition. 

 
7.46 In response to the issue regarding the City Council interest in the applicant 

company, this planning application is required to be determined by the City Council 
as Local Planning Authority  and the recommendation is made solely in light of the 
proposed developments compliance with the National Planning Policy Framework 
and the policies of the Development Plan, as required by Section 38(6) of the 
Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 and Section 70(2) of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990. Further transparency is offered by the determination of 
the application at Planning Committee. 

 
8. SUSTAINABILITY / BIODIVERSITY (Policy 1 and 17 of the Aligned Core Strategy 

and Policies NE3 and NE10 of the Local Plan 
 
8.1 The conservation and enhancement of existing trees and additional landscaping 

forms an integral part of the scheme. 
 
8.2 Surface water drainage is to be reduced to greenfield runoff rates and has been 

designed to use sustainable drainage techniques. A surface water attenuation pond 
is to be provided in the southeast corner of the site and is proposed to include 
measure to enhance biodiversity. Details of surface water drainage would be dealt 
with by condition. 

 
8.3 The Biodiversity Officer is satisfied with the contents of the submitted ecological 

assessment and that there are no constraints from European Protected Species. 
Conditions can be used to secure enhancements to the ecological interest of the 
site, which should include the following: 

 
• The production and approval of a mitigation and enhancement strategy to include a 

Construction Environmental Management Plan, and Landscape and Ecological 
Management Plan; 

• Retention of trees on site that have been assessed as having a low bat potential. If 
these are to be removed as part of the detailed scheme, an appropriate bat roosting 
assessment should be made; 

• Retention of boundary vegetation features to all boundaries for commuting bats, 
which should not be lit and for potential badger commuting areas; 

• The inclusion of bat friendly lighting throughout the detailed scheme; 
• Bat and bird box scheme; 
• Update of badger survey and ecological assessment/ protected species scoping 

report; 
• Hedgehog friendly fencing throughout the scheme; 
• Details of landscaping and management for retained and newly created grasslands, 

meadows and buffers, including a specification for the attenuation pond; 
• Timber from felled trees to be left on site to create deadwood piles for 

invertebrates, small mammals and amphibians. 
Page 26



 
 
  As such, the development accords with Policy 17 of the Aligned Core Strategy.  
 
8.4 Vehicular charging points would be required by condition. 
 
9 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 

The policy compliant requirements for Affordable Housing and financial contribution 
towards education, public open space and off-site footpath improvements are 
outlined in the above appraisal section. As an outline planning application, the final 
figures are not known and would be calculated in accordance with established 
formulas once a planning application for reserved matters is approved 
 

10 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 

10.1 The issues raised in this report are primarily ones of planning judgement.  
 
10.2 As identified in section 5 one objector has made comments that as the application 

is by the Nottinghamshire County Council Pension Fund the beneficiaries of the 
pension fund should not be taking part in the decision making process.  The 
declaration of interests is a matter for individual Councillors.  In addition to the 
comments made in paragraph 7.42 above any Councillors who may be in the 
pension scheme will not have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in the application by 
virtue of their membership of the scheme alone as there is no entitlement for them 
to occupy the land or receive an income from it. Councillors should however also 
have regard to the Council’s Code of Conduct in relation to “Other Interests” where 
tests of reasonableness of and reasonableness of perception apply. Advice may be 
sought from the Director of Legal and Governance on this issue if required.  

 
11 EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS 

 
None. 
 

12 RISK MANAGEMENT ISSUES 
 
None. 
 

13 STRATEGIC PRIORITIES 
 
Deliver quality housing for all 
 
Ensure Nottingham’s workforce is skilled 
 

14 CRIME AND DISORDER ACT IMPLICATIONS 
 
None. 
 

15 VALUE FOR MONEY 
 
None. 
 
 
 
 

Page 27



 
16 List of background papers other than published works or those disclosing 

confidential or exempt information 
 
1. Application No: 18/00060/POUT - link to online case file: 
http://publicaccess.nottinghamcity.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=P2HFHNLYFNS00 
 

17 Published documents referred to in compiling this report 
 
Nottingham Local Plan (November 2005) 
 
Contact Officer:  
Mrs Jo Bates, Case Officer, Development Management.  
Email: joanna.briggs@nottinghamcity.gov.uk.      Telephone: 0115 8764041

Page 28

http://publicaccess.nottinghamcity.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=P2HFHNLYFNS00


Key
°0 0.065 0.13 km

NOMAD printed map

© Crown copyright and database right 2018. Ordnance Survey Licence number 100019317. NOMAD print generated by a NOMAD user on 11/06/2018.
THIS MAP IS UNSUITABLE FOR PUBLICATION: contact gi@nottinghamcity.gov.uk (ext. 64341) for high quality maps.

City Boundary No description provided
Description

Copyright Nottingham City Council, Crown Copyright and database right 2018. Ordnance Survey Licence number 100019317

Page 29



- 1 -

Continued…DRAFT ONLY
Not for issue

My Ref: 18/00060/POUT (PP-06640871)

Your Ref:

Contact: Mrs Jo Bates

Email: development.management@nottinghamcity.gov.uk

Michael Davies
Savills
Innovation Court
121 Edmund Street
Birmingham
B3 2HJ

Development Management
City Planning
Loxley House
Station Street
Nottingham
NG2 3NG

Tel: 0115 8764447
www.nottinghamcity.gov.uk

Date of decision: 
TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING ACT 1990
APPLICATION FOR OUTLINE PLANNING PERMISSION

Application No: 18/00060/POUT (PP-06640871)
Application by: Nottinghamshire County Council Pension Fund
Location: 100 Woodyard Lane, Nottingham, NG8 1GB
Proposal: Demolition of existing buildings and the erection of up to 110 dwellings and 

means of access.

Nottingham City Council as Local Planning Authority hereby GRANTS OUTLINE PLANNING 
PERMISSION for the development described in the above application subject to the following 
conditions:-

 1. Application for the approval of any reserved matters shall be made to the Local Planning 
Authority before the expiration of three years from the date of this outline permission; and

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of two years from the 
date of approval of the last of the reserved matters to be approved.

Reason: In accordance with Section 92 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, as 
amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

2. Approval of the details of scale, layout, appearance and landscaping of the development 
(hereinafter called "the reserved matters") shall be obtained from the Local Planning Authority 
in writing before any development is commenced.

Reason: In accordance with Section 92 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, as 
amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

Time limit

Pre-commencement conditions
(The conditions in this section require further matters to be submitted to the local planning authority 
for approval before starting work)

Page 30



- 2 -

Continued…DRAFT ONLY
Not for issue

3. No development or site preparation works shall be carried out until details of a Construction 
Management Plan have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. The approved plan shall be adhered to throughout the construction period for the 
development and shall provide for:

(a) Details of the type, size and frequency of vehicles to/from the site and haul routes (if any);
(b) The parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors;
(c) Loading and unloading of plant and materials;
(d) Storage of plant and materials used in constructing the development;
(e) Wheel washing facilities, if necessary;
(f) Measures to control the emission of dust and dirt during construction;
(g) Site security;
(h) Measures to prevent the deposit of debris on the highway and;
(j) A timetable for its implementation.

The construction of the development shall be carried out in full accordance with the Plan.

Reason: To avoid prejudice to traffic conditions within the vicinity of the site and to safeguard 
the amenities of neighbouring residents to comply with Policy 10 of the Aligned Core Strategy 
and Policy NE9 of the Nottingham Local Plan.

4. No development involving the breaking of ground shall take place within the site until 
programme of archaeological works, consisting initially of an archaeological field evaluation, 
has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme of 
evaluation shall determine the character, extent and condition of any archaeological remains 
and provide an evidence base to determine what further archaeological work may be required 
in advance of and/or during groundworks. 

The development shall be carried out in full accordance with the approved programme of 
archaeological works, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To ensure that any archaeological remains of significance are safeguarded in 
accordance with Policy 11 of the Aligned Core Strategy and Policy BE16 of the Nottingham 
Local Plan.

5. The development hereby permitted shall not be commenced until an Arboricultural Method 
Statement prepared in accordance with principles set out in British Standard 5837:2012- 
'Trees in Relation to Design, Demolition and Construction - Recommendations', has been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The Arboricultural 
Method Statement shall specify measures to be put in place for the duration of construction 
operations to protect the existing trees that are shown to be retained on the approved plans. 
The development shall be carried out in accordance with any ongoing requirements set out in 
the approved Arboricultural Method Statement.

Reason: To ensure the protection of trees during the construction period and in accordance 
with the aims of Policy NE5 of the Local Plan.

Page 31



- 3 -

Continued…DRAFT ONLY
Not for issue

6. The development shall not be commenced until details of the improvements to Woodyard 
Lane, to include proposals for the existing verge and trees along the eastern side of the 
carriageway , vehicular/pedestrian access to the site and improvements to the public right of 
way to the north of this, have been submitted to and agreed in writing with the Local Planning 
Authority. 

The loss of any street trees along Woodyard Lane shall be replaced at a ratio of 2:1.

The access road shall then be constructed in full accordance with the approved details prior to 
the commencement of the development on site.

Reason: To avoid prejudice to traffic conditions within the vicinity of the site in the interest of 
highways and pedestrian safety in accordance with Policy 10 and 14 of the Aligned Core 
Strategy.

7. No development or site preparation works shall be carried out until details of an intrusive site 
investigation both coal mine entries and shallow cal mine workings, together with a 
remediation strategy shall be submitted to and agreed in writing with the Local Planning 
Authority.

Thereafter the development shall be carried out in full accordance with the approved 
remediation strategy.

To safeguard the health and residential amenity of the occupants of the proposed 
development to comply with Policies NE9 and NE12 of the Nottingham Local Plan.

8. Notwithstanding the submitted Flood Risk Assessment, the development shall not be 
commenced until drainage plans for the disposal of surface water, to include the use of 
sustainable urban drainage measures and additional source control features, have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

The development shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: To ensure that the development is provided with a satisfactory means of drainage as 
well as to reduce the risk of creating or exacerbating a flooding problem and to minimise the 
risk of pollution in accordance with Policy 1 of the Aligned Core Strategy and Policy NE10 of 
the Local Plan.

9. The development shall not be commenced until details of existing and proposed site levels 
have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

The development shall be completed in accordance with the approved site levels.

Reason: In order to ensure an appropriate quality of finish to the approved development and to 
protect the amenities of neighbouring residential properties in accordance with Policy 10 of the 
Aligned Core Strategy.

Page 32



- 4 -

Continued…DRAFT ONLY
Not for issue

10. Prior to the commencement of the development, a Remediation Strategy that has regard to the 
Phase 1 Assessment by Delta Simons dated January 2018 (ref 17-0043.01) and includes the 
following components to deal with the risks associated with ground, groundwater and ground 
gas contamination of the site, shall be submitted to and be approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority:  

a) A Site Investigation and a detailed assessment of the risk to all receptors that may be 
affected, including those off site. 

b) A Remediation Plan, based on a) above, giving full details of the remediation measures 
required and how they are to be undertaken (including a contingency plan for dealing with any 
unexpected contamination not previously identified in the Site Investigation). 

c) A Verification Plan providing details of the data that will be collected in order to demonstrate 
that the works set out in b) above are complete.

The Remediation Strategy shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details unless 
otherwise agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority.

To safeguard the health and residential amenity of the occupants of the proposed 
development to comply with Policies NE9 and NE12 of the Nottingham Local Plan.

11. Prior to the commencement of above ground development, a sound insulation and ventilation 
scheme which has regard to the Noise assessment by M-EC dated January 2018 (reference 
22791/01-18/5103) shall be submitted to and be approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. 

The sound insulation scheme shall include the specification and acoustic data sheets for 
glazed areas of the development and any complementary acoustic ventilation scheme and be 
designed to achieve the following internal noise levels: 

i. Not exceeding 30dB LAeq(1 hour) and not exceeding NR 25 in bedrooms for any hour 
between 23.00 and 07.00, 
ii. Not exceeding 35dB LAeq(1 hour) and not exceeding NR 30 for bedrooms and living rooms 
for any hour between 07.00 and 23.00,
iii. Not more than 45dB LAmax(5 min) in bedrooms (measured with F time weighting) between 
the hours of 23.00 and 07.00,
iv. Not more than 50dB LAeq(1 hour) for garden areas (including garden areas associated with 
residential homes or similar properties). 

Reason: To protect the amenities of future occupiers of the properties in accordance with 
Policy 10 of the Aligned Core Strategy and Policy NE9 of the Nottingham Local Plan.

Page 33



- 5 -

Continued…DRAFT ONLY
Not for issue

12. No above ground development shall be commenced until details of the following have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority:

a) External materials including windows, bricks, other finishes to walls and tiles;

b) Hard surfacing of all external areas;

c) Boundary treatment and enclosures to the site and individual plot boundaries;

d) Bin storage, incluiding any associated enclosure.

The development shall be completed in accordance with the approved details. 

Reason: In order to ensure an appropriate quality of finish to the approved development and to 
protect the amenities of neighbouring residential properties in accordance with Policy 10 of the 
Aligned Core Strategy.

13. No above ground development shall be commenced until, an electric vehicle charging scheme 
has been submitted to and be approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

The approved scheme shall be implemented prior to the first occupation of the development.

Reason: To promote sustainable modes of travel in accordance with Policy 10 of the Aligned 
Core Strategy and Policy NE9 of the Nottingham Local Plan.

14. No above ground development shall becommenced until an ecological enhancement and 
management plan, which has regard to the ecological appraisal produced by Tyler Grange 
dated  11th January, has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. The plan shall include details of the following:

- The production and approval of a mitigation and enhancement strategy to include a 
Construction Environmental Management Plan and Landscape and Ecological Management 
Plan;
- Retention of trees on site that have been assessed as having a low bat potential. If these are 
to be removed as part of the reserved matters scheme, an appropriate bat roosting 
assessment should be made;
- Retention of boundary vegetation features to all boundaries for commuting bats, which 
should not be lit, and for potential badger commuting areas;
- The inclusion of bat friendly lighting throughout;
- A bat and bird box scheme;
- Update of the badger survey and ecological assessment/ protected species scoping report;
- Hedgehog friendly fencing throughout the scheme;
- Details of landscaping and management for retained and newly created grasslands, 
meadows and buffers, including a specification for the attenuation pond;
- Timber from felled trees to be left on site to create deadwood piles for invertebrates, small 
mammals and amphibians;
- Timescales for the implementation of ecological enhancements.

The ecological enhancement and management plan shall be carried out in accordance with 
the approved details. 

Reason: In the interests of ecological enhancement and in accordance with the aims of Policy 
17 of the Aligned Core Stratgey and Policy NE3 of the Nottingham Local Plan.

Page 34



- 6 -

Continued…DRAFT ONLY
Not for issue

15. No above ground development shall take place until details of  a renewable energy scheme, 
which has regard to the energy statement written by PBA (Project Ref: 42470) dated January 
2018, has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Thereafter the renewable/low carbon energy scheme shall be implemented  prior to first 
occupation of each dwelling unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority.

Reason: In the interests of providing a sustainable development and in accordance with Policy 
1 of the Aligned Cored Strategy.

16. No dwelling shall be occupied until details of the public open space, including its design and 
the timescale for its installation, have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. 

Thereafter the public open space shall be constructed in accordance with the approved details 
and timescale, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: In the interests of the providing an attractive community facility and an appropriate 
level of public open space within the development in accordance with Policie 10 and 16 of the 
Aligned Core Strategy and  Policies ST1 and R2 of the Nottingham Local Plan.

17. Prior to first occupation of each dwelling, verification that the approved sound insulation 
scheme has been implemented and is fully operational shall be submitted to and be approved 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

Reason: To protect the amenities of future occupiers of the properties in accordance with 
Policy 10 of the Aligned Core Strategy and Policy NE9 of the Nottingham Local Plan.

18. No part of the development hereby permitted shall be occupied until a detailed landscaping 
and planting scheme indicating the type, height, species, location, sectional pit details and 
maintenance arrangements of the proposed trees and shrubs has been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The approved landscaping scheme shall 
be carried out in the first planting and seeding seasons following the occupation of the 
development and any trees or plants which die, are removed or become seriously damaged or 
diseased within a period of five years shall be replaced in the next planting season with others 
of similar size and species, unless the Local Planning Authority gives written consent to any 
variation.

Reason: To ensure a high quality development in accordance with Policy 10 of the Aligned 
Core Strategy.

Pre-occupation conditions
(The conditions in this section must be complied with before the development is occupied)

Page 35



- 7 -

Continued…DRAFT ONLY
Not for issue

19. Prior to first occupation of the development, the following shall be submitted to and be 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority:

a) A Verification Report, which shall include the data referred to in the Verification Plan, to 
demonstrate that the approved Remediation Strategy to deal with ground gas contamination of 
the site has been fully implemented and completed.  

b) A Verification Report, which shall include the data referred to in the Verification Plan, to 
demonstrate that the approved Remediation Strategy to deal with ground and groundwater 
contamination of the site has been fully implemented and completed.   

To safeguard the health and residential amenity of the occupants of the proposed 
development to comply with Policies NE9 and NE12 of the Nottingham Local Plan.

20. The dwellings shall not be occupied until the following have been carried out in accordance 
with the details that have first been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority:-

a) the installation of the means of enclosure for the property;
b) laying of the hard surfaced areas  for the properties;
c) installation of the bin storage area for the properties.

Reason: To ensure that the appearance of the development will be satisfactory and in the 
interests of highway safety in accordance with Policy 10 of the Aligned Core Strategy.

21. Prior to the first occupation of the development a timescale for the installation of the roads, 
pavements and footpaths shall be submitted to and agreed in writing with the Local Planning 
Authority.

Thereafter their installation shall be carried out in accordance with the approved timescales.

Reason: To ensure a high quality development in accordance with Policy 14 of the Aligned 
Core Strategy.

22. Prior to the first occupation of any of the dwellings hereby approved, an application and draft 
designs for amendments to the Traffic Regulation Order in the area shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

The developer shall thereafter pursue implementation of the proposed amendments, prior to 
first occupation of the dwellings.

Reason: In the interests of Highway Safety and sustainable development in accordance with 
Policies 10 and 14 of the Aligned Core Strategy and Policy T3 of the Nottingham Local Plan.

23. In this condition "retained tree" means an existing TPO tree or mature tree which are to be 
retained in accordance with the submitted indicative master plan; and paragraphs (a) and (b) 
below:

(a) No retained tree shall be cut down, uprooted or destroyed, nor shall any retained tree be 
topped or lopped other than in accordance with the approved plans and particulars, without the 
written approval of the local planning authority. Any topping or lopping approved shall be 
carried out in accordance with British Standard 3998 (2010) Recommendations for tree work.

Regulatory/ongoing conditions
(Conditions relating to the subsequent use of the development and other regulatory matters)

Page 36



- 8 -

Continued…DRAFT ONLY
Not for issue

(b) If any retained tree is removed, uprooted or destroyed or dies, another tree shall be planted 
at the same place and that tree shall be of such size and species, and shall be planted at such 
time, as may be specified in writing by the local planning authority. If any retained tree is 
topped or lopped other than in accordance with the approved plans and particulars, without the 
written approval of the local planning authority, then remedial pruning or replacement planting 
as appropriate shall be undertaken as specified in writing by the local planning authority

Reason: To ensure that existing TPO  and other trees are safeguarded during construction in 
accordance with Policies NE5 and NE6 of the Local Plan.

Standard condition- scope of permission

S1. Except as may be modified by the conditions listed above, the development shall be carried 
out in complete accordance with the details described in the forms, drawings and other 
documents comprising the application as validated by the council on 17 January 2018.

Reason: To determine the scope of this permission.

Informatives

 1. The reason for this decision, and a summary of the policies the local planning authority has had 
regard to are set out in the committee report, enclosed herewith and forming part of this decision.

 2. This permission is valid only for the purposes of Part III of the Town & Country Planning Act 
1990. It does not remove the need to obtain any other consents that may be necessary, nor does it 
imply that such other consents will necessarily be forthcoming. It does not override any restrictions 
contained in the deeds to the property or the rights of neighbours. You are advised to check what 
other restrictions there are and what other consents may be needed, for example from the 
landowner, statutory bodies and neighbours.  This permission is not an approval under the Building 
Regulations.

 3. The archaeological field evaluation should be undertaken by a suitably qualified and 
experienced archaeological contractor in accordance with the Standards and guidance of the 
Chartered Institute for Archaeologists and in accordance with a Written Scheme of Investigation 
(WSI) to be approved by the City Archaeologist. The WSI should be written in response to a brief to 
be issued by the City Archaeologist.

 4. Contaminated Land, Ground Gas & Groundwater
The Remediation Strategy (including its component elements) must be undertaken and 
implemented in accordance with Defra and the Environment Agency's guidance Model Procedures 
for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11, CIRIA C735 Good Practice on the Testing & 
Verification of Protection Systems for Buildings Against Hazardous Ground Gases (2014) and other 
authoritative guidance. The Remediation Strategy must also provide details of:
i) 'Cut and fill' operations on site
ii) How trees retained on site will be dealt with
iii) How gas precautions including any radon gas precautions will be validated 
iv) Any asbestos surveys carried out, the method statement for removal of asbestos and 
subsequent validation of air and soil following asbestos removal and demolition. 

Following completion of the development, no construction work, landscaping or other activity must 
be undertaken which may compromise the remediation measures implemented to deal with ground, 
groundwater and ground gas contamination of the site.  

Page 37



- 9 -

Continued…DRAFT ONLY
Not for issue

Any ground gas protection measures included in the original development are designed for the 
buildings as originally constructed to protect against possible dangers to public health and safety 
arising from any accumulation of methane, carbon dioxide or other gas and to ensure that the site 
can be developed and used without health or safety risks to the occupiers of the development 
and/or adjoining occupiers.  These protection measures may be compromised by any future 
extension of the footprint of the original building or new building structures within the curtilage of the 
site including the erection of a garage, shed, conservatory or porch or similar structure.  Advice 
from the Council's Environmental Health Team regarding appropriate gas protection measures 
must be sought should future extension of the footprint of the original building or new building 
structures within the curtilage of the site be proposed (regardless of whether the proposed 
construction requires planning permission or building regulation approval). 

It is a requirement of current Building Regulations that basic radon protection measures are 
installed in all new constructions, extensions conversions & refurbishments on sites which are 
Radon Class 3 or 4 and full radon protection measure are installed on site which are Radon Class 5 
or higher.  Advice from the Council's Environmental Health Team regarding appropriate gas 
protection measures must be sought where there are both radon issues and ground gas issues 
present.

The responsibility and subsequent liability for safe development and secure occupancy of the site 
rests with the developer and/or the landowner.  The developer is required to institute a thorough 
investigation and assessment of the ground conditions, nature and degree of contamination on the 
site to ensure that actual or potential risks to public health and safety can be overcome by 
appropriate remedial, preventive or precautionary measures.  The developer shall provide at his 
own expense such evidence as is required to indicate clearly that the risks associated with ground, 
groundwater and ground gas contamination of the site has been addressed satisfactorily.

 5. Environmental Noise Assessment 
The environmental noise assessment shall be suitable and sufficient, where appropriate shall 
consider the impact of vibration, and shall be undertaken by a competent person having regard to 
BS 7445: 2003 Description and Measurement of Environmental Noise and any other appropriate 
British Standards.  The internal noise levels referred to are derived from BS 8233: 2014 Sound 
Insulation and Noise Reduction for Buildings.

The approved sound insulation scheme must be maintained &, in the case of mechanical 
ventilation, must be maintained, serviced and operated in accordance with manufacturer's 
recommendations.

 6. A key theme of the National Planning Policy Framework (DCLG 2012) is that developments 
should enable future occupiers to make green vehicle choices and it explicitly states that low 
emission vehicle infrastructure, including electric vehicle (EV) charging points, should be provided 
(paragraph 35).

 7. Highways;

1) It is an offence under Section 148 and Section 151 of the Highways Act 1980 to deposit mud on 
the public highway and as such you should undertake every effort to prevent it occurring. If the 
development works will have any impact on the public highway, please contact Highways Network 
Management on 0115 876 5238 or by email at highway.management@nottinghamcity.gov.uk. All 
associated costs will be the responsibility of the developer.
2) The Highways Network Management team at Loxley House must be notified regarding when the 
works will be carried out as disturbance to the highway will be occurring and licences may be 
required. Please contact them on 0115 8765238. All costs shall be borne by the applicant.
3) Planning consent is not consent to work on the highway. To carry out off-site works associated 
with the planning consent, approval must first be obtained from the Local Highway Authority. 

Page 38



- 10 -

Continued…DRAFT ONLY
Not for issue

Approval will take the form of a Section 278 Agreement and you should contact Highways Network 
Management on 0115 8765293 to instigate the process. It is strongly recommended that you make 
contact at the earliest opportunity to allow time for the process to be completed as you will not be 
permitted to work on the Highway before it is complete. All associated costs will be borne by the 
developer. We reserve the right to charge commuted sums in respect of ongoing maintenance 
where the item in question is above and beyond what is required for the safe and satisfactory 
functioning of the highway. 
4) The applicant should note that notwithstanding any planning permission that if any highway 
forming part of the development is to be adopted by the Highways Authority. The new roads and 
any highway drainage will be required to comply with the Nottingham City Council's current highway 
design guidance and specification for roadworks. The Advanced Payments Code in the Highways 
Act 1980 applies and under section 219 of the Act payment will be required from the owner of the 
land fronting a private street on which a new building is to be erected. The developer should 
contact the Highway Authority with regard to compliance with the Code, or alternatively to the issue 
of a Section 38 Agreement and bond under the Highways Act 1980. A Section 38 Agreement can 
take some time to complete. Therefore, it is recommended that the developer contact the Highway 
Authority as early as possible. It is strongly recommended that the developer contact the Highway 
Authority at an early stage to clarify the codes etc. with which compliance will be required in the 
particular circumstance. It is essential that design calculations and detailed construction drawings 
for the proposed works are submitted to and approved by the City Council in writing before any 
work commences on site. For further information please contact Network Management on 0115 
876 5293. 
5) The Highway Authority reserve the right to charge commuted sums in respect of ongoing 
maintenance where the item in question is above and beyond what is required for the safe and 
satisfactory functioning of the highway. All trees to be planted on highway will be subject to 
commuted sum payments for their maintenance. The commuted sum for a street tree is £938.61 
per tree. Trees that will have a dual purpose as use for drainage will incur greater costs. For further 
information regarding the collection of commuted sums the applicant should contact Network 
Management on 0115 876 5293.
6) For TRO advice and further information the applicant is advised to contact Scott Harrison on 
0115 8765245.
7) For PROW advice please consult with John Lee john.lee@nottinghamcity.gov.uk 
8) Please contact Robert Smith 0115 8763604 robert.smith3@nottinghamcity.gov.uk to discuss 
sustainable transport, and the Travel Plan Statement and measures.

 9. As hedgehogs are a NERC Act (2006) Species of Principal Conservation Importance, a suitable 
5 inch square gap at the bottom of the fence either side of the garden/boundary throughout a 
development will improve connecting habitat for hedgehogs and other small mammals.

 8. Conditions 2 and 18 are 'reserved matters' as defined in the Town & Country Planning (General 
Development Procedure) Order 1995.

Where a condition specified in this decision notice requires any further details to be submitted for 
approval, please note that an application fee will be payable at the time such details are submitted 
to the City Council. A form is available from the City Council for this purpose.

Your attention is drawn to the rights of appeal set out on the attached sheet.

Page 39



- 11 -

DRAFT ONLY
Not for issue

RIGHTS OF APPEAL
Application No: 18/00060/POUT (PP-06640871)

If the applicant is aggrieved by the decision of the City Council to impose conditions on the grant of 
permission for the proposed development, then he or she can appeal to the Secretary of State under 
section 78 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

Any appeal must be submitted within six months of the date of this notice.  You can obtain an appeal 
form from the Customer Support Unit, The Planning Inspectorate, Room 3/15 Eagle Wing, Temple 
Quay House, 2 The Square, Temple Quay, Bristol, BS1 6PN.  Phone: 0117 372 6372.  Appeal forms 
can also be downloaded from the Planning Inspectorate website at http://www.planning-
inspectorate.gov.uk/pins/index.htm.  Alternatively, the Planning Inspectorate have introduced an 
online appeals service which you can use to make your appeal online. You can find the service 
through the Appeals area of the Planning Portal - see www.planningportal.gov.uk/pcs.

The Inspectorate will publish details of your appeal on the internet (on the Appeals area of the 
Planning Portal).  This may include a copy of the original planning application form and relevant 
supporting documents supplied to the local authority by you or your agent, together with the 
completed appeal form and information you submit to the Planning Inspectorate.  Please ensure that 
you only provide information, including personal information belonging to you that you are happy will 
be made available to others in this way.  If you supply personal information belonging to a third party 
please ensure you have their permission to do so.  More detailed information about data protection 
and privacy matters is available on the Planning Portal.

The Secretary of State can allow a longer period for giving notice of an appeal, but will not normally 
be prepared to use this power unless there are special circumstances which excuse the delay.

The Secretary of State need not consider an appeal if the City Council could not for legal reasons 
have granted permission or approved the proposals without the conditions it imposed.

In practice, the Secretary of State does not refuse to consider appeals solely because the City 
Council based its decision on a direction given by him.

PURCHASE NOTICES

If either the City Council or the Secretary of State refuses permission to develop land or grants it 
subject to conditions, the owner may claim that he can neither put the land to a reasonably beneficial 
use in its existing state nor can he render the land capable of a reasonably beneficial use by the 
carrying out of any development which has been or would be permitted. This procedure is set out in 
Part VI of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

COMPENSATION

In certain limited circumstances, a claim may be made against the City Council for compensation 
where permission is refused or granted subject to conditions by the Secretary of State. The 
circumstances in which compensation is payable are set out in Section 114 of the Town & Country 
Planning Act 1990.

 

Page 40



BRIEFING NOTE 

 

THE VACANT BUILDING CREDIT AND APPLICATION TO AFFORDABLE 
HOUSING PROVISION 

 

This briefing note is being circulated to advise members of the Planning Committee 
ahead of its June meeting regarding the Vacant Building Credit (VBC). An outline 
planning application for residential development on the former Siemens employment 
site, Woodyard Lane, Wollaton (planning ref: 18/00060/POUT) is to be reported to 
this meeting for determination. The applicant, the Nottinghamshire County Council 
Pension Fund, is requesting the use of the VBC to offset affordable housing 
obligations. 

In May 2016 amendments to the National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG) on 
Planning Obligations reintroduced changes to the way that affordable housing 
contributions can be sought from development. 

The NPPG sits alongside the National Planning Policy Framework and Development 
Plan as the overarching guidance in the determination of planning applications. 

What is the Vacant Building Credit? 

The NPPG (2016) reintroduced the Vacant Building Credit (VBC). As national policy 
the VBC aims to provide an incentive for the regeneration of brownfield sites 
containing vacant buildings. The NPPG states that where a vacant building is 
brought back into any lawful use, or is demolished to be replaced by a new building, 
the developer should be offered the VBC when a Local Planning Authority (LPA) 
calculates its affordable housing contribution. Affordable housing contributions may 
be required for any increase in floorspace. 

VBC has the effect of reducing the amount of affordable housing ordinarily required. 

What is the process for determining the vacant building credit? 

The NPPG states that where there is an overall increase in floorspace in the 
proposed development, LPA’s should calculate the amount of affordable housing 
contributions required from the development as set out in their Local Plan. A ‘credit’ 
should then be applied, which is the equivalent of the gross floorspace of any 
relevant vacant buildings being brought back into use or demolished as part of the 
scheme and deducted from the overall affordable housing contribution calculation. 
This would apply in calculating either the number of affordable housing units to be 
provided within the development or where an equivalent financial contribution is 
being provided. The existing floorspace of a vacant building should be credited 
against the floorspace of the new development.  

The VBC applies where a building has not been abandoned. In considering how the 
vacant building credit should apply to a particular development, the NPPG states that 
LPA’s should have regard to the intention of national policy. In doing so, it may be 
appropriate for authorities to consider: 

Page 41



• Whether the building has been made vacant for the sole purposes of re-
development. 

• Whether the building is covered by an extant or recently expired planning 
permission for the same or substantially the same development. 

18/00060/POUT- Former Siemens Site, Woodyard Lane 

An outline planning application was received in January 2016 for the redevelopment 
of this employment site for residential purposes. The illustrative master plan shows a 
development of 110 dwellings consisting of largely family housing with a small 
apartment building. The site is allocated for development in the emerging Land and 
Planning Policies Development Plan Document (LAPP), September 2017, reference 
“PA35Woodyard Lane - Siemans” for family housing. 

The applicant had sought pre-application advice and at the time made the Council 
aware of Siemens intention to vacate the site. 

As part of the planning submission evidence has been received from the applicant’s 
solicitors that confirm that in June 2017 Siemens served notice of their intention 
vacate the site and relocate to smaller premises at the end of a six month period. 
The applicant did not take steps to terminate the lease and as such, the buildings 
were not “made vacant for the sole purposes of redevelopment”. The site does not 
benefit from “an extant or recently expired planning permissions for the same or 
substantially the same development”. Siemens subsequently vacated the site in 
December 2017 for new premises within the city boundaries. This was prior to the 
submission of the current outline planning application under consideration. 
 
It is considered that its redevelopment as proposed would meet the tests for the 
application of VBC. 
 
The Gross Internal Area Floorspace (GIA) on the site has been determined to be 
5.280sqm.  
 
As financial contributions for affordable housing are calculated by reference to a 
policy based formula reliant on details to be covered in reserved matters it is not 
possible to give a precise indication of what the final affordable housing provision 
would be at this stage. The formula by which the VBC would be calculated has also 
been agreed.  
 
The applicant however, has provided a calculation based on the illustrative 
masterplan. Using an average of 100sqm of floorspace per dwelling, they have 
calculated that the proposed 110 dwellings would amount to approximately 
11,000sqm of development. Without VBC, the site would be required to provide 22 
affordable housing units however, using the VBC calculation they consider that the 
development should provide 11.4 affordable housing units. This would be rounded 
up to 12 dwellings as part houses could not be provided. 
 

The application of the VBC would in in line with national policy but members are 
advised that this would result in a 50% reduction of affordable housing provision on 
the site.  

Page 42



 
 
WARDS AFFECTED: Bulwell  Item No:  
 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 
20th June 2018 

 
REPORT OF CHIEF PLANNER 
 
Site Of Apollo Hotel PH, Hucknall Lane 
 
1 SUMMARY 
 
Application No: 18/00809/PFUL3 for planning permission 

 
Application by: Reynolds Associates  Mr Keith Reynolds on behalf of Mr M Barker 

 
Proposal: Use of land as hand car wash with canopies, associated storage 

containers, relocated pump unit, acoustic fence, catering van 
serving hot food and drink and with associated customer seating 
area, bin store and portable toilets. (Resubmission) 

 
The application is brought to Committee at the written request of Ward Councillors. 
 
To meet the Council's Performance Targets this application should  
 
2 RECOMMENDATIONS 

  
GRANT PLANNING PERMISSION for a temporary period of 1 year and subject to 
the conditions listed in the draft decision notice at the end of this report. 

 
Power to determine the final details of the conditions to be delegated to the Chief 
Planner. 

 
3 BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 The application site is the site of the former Apollo Hotel and public house on 

Hucknall Lane. The buildings were demolished in 2012 when the site was cleared. 
There is a weldmesh security fence along the boundary of the site with Hucknall 
Road. There are close-boarded timber fences and concrete panel fences to the 
other boundaries. 

 
3.2 There are residential properties on Ventura Drive to the north and adjoining the 

east/rear boundary of the site. There is a tyre centre and electrical factors 
businesses to the south of the site on Saxondale Court. 

 
3.3 Planning permission for the use of part of the application site as a hand car wash 

was granted temporary consent for three years on 22 August 2013 and expired on 
22 August 2016 without a further planning application being made for the continued 
authorisation of this use. In addition to the on-going use of the site as a car wash, it 
had also been noted that a number of additional storage containers and a mobile 
catering van serving hot and cold food had been located on the site, and a range of 
vehicles were also being stored on the site, without planning permission. It was 
therefore considered that a breach of planning control had occurred and that it was 
expedient to serve an enforcement notice requiring the cessation of all uses and 
the removal of all containers, vehicles, car wash canopies and equipment from the 

Page 43

Agenda Item 4b



 
site. The enforcement notice took effect on 24 March 2017 and allowed for a period 
of one month for compliance. Whilst a planning appeal against the requirements of 
this notice was submitted, the associated fee was not paid and the appeal lapsed. 

 
3.4 At the present time, all activities on the site remain unauthorised and are taking 

place in breach of the enforcement notice. Prosecution proceedings have 
commenced, however following some progression towards compliance with the 
enforcement notice including the removal of a number of storage containers and all 
surplus vehicles from the site these have been held in abeyance. The current 
application was also lodged and seeks to authorise the activities being enforced 
against, subject to appropriate controls/amendments. 

 
4 DETAILS OF THE PROPOSAL 
 

The application proposes the use of the land as a hand car wash with canopies, 
associated storage containers, a catering van serving hot food and drink, and with 
an associated customer seating area. The car wash area and canopies are located 
towards the southern boundary of the site with the neighbouring tyre centre 
business. The storage containers are to be relocated from their existing position on 
the boundary with neighbouring residential properties off Ventura Drive to a central 
position to the north of the car wash area. A 2.6m high acoustic fence is proposed 
to be erected to the rear of the car wash area and on a line 5m from the rear 
boundary of the site with these neighbouring residential properties. The proposed 
catering van and associated customer seating are to be located centrally and 
towards the Hucknall Lane boundary of the site. A bin store area and portable toilet 
are proposed to be located adjacent to the catering van. Vehicle access is via an 
existing gated entrance on Hucknall Lane. 

 
5 CONSULTATIONS AND OBSERVATIONS OF OTHER OFFICERS 
 

Adjoining occupiers consulted: 
 
181-199(o) Hucknall Lane 
1, 7, 9, 11, 12, 14-17, 18, 22 Ventura Drive 
3 Saxondale Court 
 
Neighbour: Objection. Although the agent is stating that improvements will be 
made, and some containers and vehicles have been removed, I do not feel that this 
will prevent the noise nuisance and complete disregard for neighbouring properties 
that are currently an issue. 

 
Despite the planning condition intended to control hours of use, the car wash opens 
at 8am 7 days a week and has done since it opened in 2013. This means that the 
workers are on site any time from 7am opening containers, dragging equipment 
across the ground and shouting to each other creating noise. 8am is not an 
appropriate opening time at weekends due to the disturbance the workers cause in 
getting the site ready. No amount of staff notices will change a culture that has 
already been in place for 5 years. The Council have done nothing to remedy this in 
the last 5 years that the car wash has been open, and has taken very little apparent 
action since the whole development started causing problems in 2012. 

 
People in the area have no faith that the car wash or Council will take any action to 
ensure that the amendments to the site will reduce the impact on residents and put 
further remedies in place if they don't. It is extremely disappointing to see that 

Page 44



 
people can continually breach local plans and planning obligations with absolutely 
no consequence and cause problems for residents that just want a quiet life. 
 
Neighbour: Objection. The car wash always makes a mess and noise. Large 
storage containers are positioned on the boundary with residential properties and 
there have been instances of vermin in gardens. Residents are fed up with this 
business. 
 
Neighbour: Objection. Have experienced many problems including noise and loud 
music; mess and smells; vermin; large storage containers on boundary producing 
damp; deterring use of garden, causing stress, and affecting general health. Main 
concern is that business removes the storage containers from the boundary and 
stops making noise and playing loud music. 

 
Additional consultation letters sent to: 
 
Ward Councillors: The three councillors in Bulwell Ward wish to register our 
opposition to the application. We rejected the first application for good reasons and 
nothing has changed since then to change our view. If anything the applicant’s 
behaviour has compounded our view by showing a complete disregard for the 
impact on nearby residents from noise, smells and antisocial behaviour by workers. 
Query if the site has the necessary hygiene certificates and whether staff have 
been appropriately trained. The applicant has also shown a tendency to increase 
his facilities over time without permission and cannot see that this would change. 
 
Environmental Health: Appears that most of the neighbour objections have been 
channelled through Planning rather than to Environmental Health or Community 
Protection Officers. Acknowledge that there is local concern regarding the 
environmental impact of the proposed use. Whilst the reconfiguration of the site and 
other mitigation being proposed may address many of these concerns, this is 
dependent upon continued good supervision and site management which the 
operator has not been able to demonstrate throughout the operations carried out to 
date, including a need for some improvements to food hygiene at the catering van. 
Planning conditions regarding noise and hours of operation would require continued 
monitoring and are typically difficult to control on car wash uses. Would therefore 
support the refusal of the application to continue the use or would urge the 
consideration of further measures to reduce the impact of the use upon the locality.  
 
Highways: No objection. The site has been operating for a number of years without 
any particular highway issues associated with its operation. 

 
6 RELEVANT POLICIES AND GUIDANCE 
 

National Planning Policy Framework: 
 
6.1 The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) sets out the Government’s 

planning policies. While planning applications still need to be determined in 
accordance with the development plan, which are set out in the report, the NPPF is 
a material consideration in the assessment of this application.  

 
6.2  The NPPF advises that there is a presumption in favour of sustainable development 

and that development which is sustainable should be approved. Paragraph 17 of 
the NPPF lists the core planning principles that should underpin decision taken on 
planning applications. Of particular relevance to this application is the need to 

Page 45



 
secure high quality design and a good standard of amenity for all existing and 
future occupants of land and buildings, and to contribute to conserving and 
enhancing the natural environment and support the transition to a low carbon 
future. 

 
6.3  Paragraphs 56-64 of the NPPF sets out the approach for achieving good quality 

design, including responding to local character, creating a strong sense of place 
and resisting poor design that fails to take opportunities to improve the character 
and the quality of an area. 

 
6.4  Paragraph 96 states that new development should be expected to take account of 

landform, layout, building orientation, massing and landscaping to minimise energy 
consumption. 

 
6.5 Paragraph 111 states that planning decisions should encourage the effective use of 

land by re-using land that has been previously developed. 
 
6.6 Paragraph 123 states that planning policies and decisions should aim to avoid 

noise from giving rise to significant adverse impacts on health and quality of life as 
a result of new development and mitigate and reduce to a minimum other adverse 
impacts on health and quality of life arising from noise from new development, 
including through the use of conditions. 

 
6.7 Annex 1 states that the NPPF aims to strengthen local decision making and 

reinforce the importance of up-to-date plans. For the purpose of decision-taking, the 
policies in the Local Plan should not be considered out-of-date and are to be 
afforded weight in accordance with their conformity with the NPPF. 

 
Nottingham Local Plan (November 2005): 
 
NE9 - Pollution 
 
Aligned Core Strategies (September 2014) 

 
Policy 10 - Design and Enhancing Local Identity 

 
7. APPRAISAL OF PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT 
 
 Main Issue 
  

(i) Whether the continued use, layout and appearance of the development is 
appropriate in relation to the amenity of neighbouring residential properties 
and the wider area. 

 
7.1 Planning permission for the continued use of the site for the car wash, catering van, 

storage of vehicles and shipping containers was refused on 25 January 2018. The 
activities were considered detrimental to the amenity of neighbouring residential 
properties by virtue of the level of activity being carried out in close proximity to 
these neighbouring properties, and the visual amenity of the area by virtue of the 
disorganised and untidy appearance of the site. At the time of the refusal, the 
applicant had failed to respond to officer request for amendments to the site layout 
and operations to mitigate against the impacts being caused on neighbours and the 
amenity of the area. The refusal of planning permission and enforcement action 
against the unauthorised uses were therefore considered appropriate steps to take. 

Page 46



 
 
7.2 Enforcement prosecution proceedings had commenced before the applicant then 

committed to undertake a number of measures to improve the appearance of the 
site, including the removal of all parked vehicles and a number of storage 
containers. This planning application has also been submitted and subsequently 
supplemented to include the proposed relocation of all storage containers away 
from the boundary with the neighbouring properties and also the provision of an 
acoustic fence to the rear of the car wash area both to screen the car wash 
operations and to reduce noise impacts. The applicant has also committed to 
relocate the car wash pump equipment away from the boundary with neighbouring 
properties and to secure this within a secure acoustic enclosure. Portable toilets 
and a bin storage area are to be provided for staff and customer use. A further 
fence is also to be erected to subdivide the larger vacant site and therefore to 
contain the proposed uses within a defined area. The remaining area of the larger 
vacant site has been omitted from the application site boundary and would 
therefore have no planning status until such time as redevelopment proposals are 
submitted and approved. 

 
7.3 The proposed layout of the site would be more ordered, with activities and noise 

sources being centred within the site at a distance from neighbouring residential 
properties, including the relocation and enclosure of the pump generator from within 
a container on the rear boundary of the site to a position adjacent to the 
neighbouring vehicle repair/servicing centre premises. Subject to appropriate 
specifications, it is considered that the provision of acoustic and other fencing to the 
rear of the car wash area would also mitigate against noise nuisance from car wash 
activities. It is therefore considered that these significant changes would, subject to 
implementation within a strictly limited period, substantially address the amenity of 
neighbouring residential properties and visual amenity of the area. Accordingly, and 
subject to conditions to include (i) a temporary consent period of 1 year to ensure 
implementation and compliance with the approved layout; (ii) that the use is not 
carried out until the site layout has been implemented in accordance with the 
approved layout and details and within 1 month of the date of planning permission; 
(iii) limitations on the hours of operation in accordance with the previous planning 
permission, and (iv) noise levels not to exceed those prescribed within the previous 
planning permission, it is considered that on this basis the proposed development 
would accord with Policy NE9 and Policy 10. 

 
7.4 The temporary planning permission previously granted included an hours of 

operation condition, which is proposed to be repeated. Whilst it is alleged that the 
applicant has been operating outside of these hours control this has not been 
reported until recently. Therefore, in addition to the implementation of noise and 
other nuisance mitigation, the applicant will be advised to adhere strictly to these 
hours of use or face renewed enforcement action and refusal of a subsequent 
application to extend the proposed 1 year temporary planning permission.  

 
7.5 The relocation of the storage containers and provision of a bin store area at a 

distance from the neighbouring properties would also minimise any instances of 
nuisance along the rear boundary, which would be rendered inaccessible with the 
provision of the proposed new fencing. The applicant has also committed to adjust 
the angle of any floodlights that cause any nuisance and to carry out weekly checks 
to ensure compliance. 

 
 
 

Page 47



 
8. SUSTAINABILITY / BIODIVERSITY 
 
 None. 
 
9 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 

None. 
 

10 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
The issues raised in this report are primarily ones of planning judgement. Should 
legal considerations arise these will be addressed at the meeting. 
 

11 EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
None. 
 

12 RISK MANAGEMENT ISSUES 
 
None. 
 

13 STRATEGIC PRIORITIES 
 
None. 
 

14 CRIME AND DISORDER ACT IMPLICATIONS 
 
None. 
 

15 VALUE FOR MONEY 
 
None. 
 

16 List of background papers other than published works or those disclosing 
confidential or exempt information 
 
1. Application No: 18/00809/PFUL3 - link to online case file: 
http://publicaccess.nottinghamcity.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=P7QQ8QLYN3900 
2. Neighbour, 8.5.18 
3. Neighbour, 24.5.18 
4. Ward Councillors, 21.5.18 
5. Highways, 21.5.18 
6. Environmental Health and Safer Places, 22.5.18 
 

17 Published documents referred to in compiling this report 
 
Nottingham Local Plan (November 2005) 
Aligned Core Strategies (September 2014) 
 
Contact Officer:  
Mr Jim Rae, Case Officer, Development Management.  
Email: jim.rae@nottinghamcity.gov.uk.      Telephone: 0115 8764074 

 

Page 48

http://publicaccess.nottinghamcity.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=P7QQ8QLYN3900


Key
°0 0.025 0.05 km

NOMAD printed map

© Crown copyright and database right 2018. Ordnance Survey Licence number 100019317. NOMAD print generated by a NOMAD user on 11/06/2018.
THIS MAP IS UNSUITABLE FOR PUBLICATION: contact gi@nottinghamcity.gov.uk (ext. 64341) for high quality maps.

City Boundary No description provided
Description

Copyright Nottingham City Council, Crown Copyright and database right 2018. Ordnance Survey Licence number 100019317

Page 49



Continued…DRAFT ONLY
Not for issue

My Ref: 18/00809/PFUL3 (PP-06921311)

Your Ref:

Contact: Mr Jim Rae

Email: development.management@nottinghamcity.gov.uk

Reynolds Associates  Mr Keith Reynolds
 PO Box 7988
Arnold
Nottingham
NG5 5ZU
United Kingdom

Development Management
City Planning
Loxley House
Station Street
Nottingham
NG2 3NG

Tel: 0115 8764447
www.nottinghamcity.gov.uk

Date of decision: 
TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING ACT 1990
APPLICATION FOR PLANNING PERMISSION

Application No: 18/00809/PFUL3 (PP-06921311)
Application by: Mr M Barker
Location: Site Of Apollo Hotel PH, Hucknall Lane, Nottingham
Proposal: Use of land as hand car wash with canopies, associated storage containers, 

relocated pump unit, acoustic fence, catering van serving hot food and drink and 
with associated customer seating area, bin store and portable toilets. 
(Resubmission)

Nottingham City Council as Local Planning Authority hereby GRANTS PLANNING PERMISSION 
for the development described in the above application subject to the following conditions:-

 1. The use hereby permitted shall be discontinued on or before 30 June 2019 and the building(s) 
and works constructed or carried out under this permission shall be removed and the land 
reinstated to its former condition by that date unless upon subsequent application the Local 
Planning Authority grants a further permission.

Reason: In order to ensure that the development has been implemented in accordance with 
the approved drawings and therefore in mitigation of the impacts currently being caused to the 
amenities of neighbouring residential properties and the visual amenity of the area in 
accordance with Policy 10 of the Aligned Core Strategies and Policy NE9 of the Nottingham 
Local Plan.

There are no conditions in this section.

There are no conditions in this section.

1

Time limit

Pre-commencement conditions
(The conditions in this section require further matters to be submitted to the local planning authority 
for approval before starting work)

Pre-occupation conditions
(The conditions in this section must be complied with before the development is occupied)

Page 50



Continued…DRAFT ONLY
Not for issue

2. The use hereby permitted shall not be carried out until the site layout has been implemented in 
accordance with drawing ref. 10871/S02/D , including the relocation of storage containers, 
relocated pump unit with acoustic fence, acoustic fence to the rear of the car wash area, bin 
store area, and portable toilet. Written verification of the completion of these works shall be 
provided to the Local Planning Authority no later than one month from the date of this consent.

Reason: In order to ensure that the development is implemented promptly in accordance with 
the approved layout plan and therefore in mitigation of the impacts currently being caused to 
the amenities of neighbouring residential properties and the visual amenity of the area in 
accordance with Policy 10 of the Aligned Core Strategies and Policy NE9 of the Nottingham 
Local Plan.

3. The approved hand car wash use shall not be carried on outside the following hours unless 
with the prior written consent of the Local Planning Authority:

08:00 to 19:00 Monday to Friday
08:00 to 18:00 Saturday
09:00 to 16:00 Sunday

Reason; In the interests of the amenity of neighbouring residents to the application site and in 
accordance with Policy 10 of the Aligned Core Strategies and Policy NE9 of the Nottingham 
Local Plan.

4. Noise associated with activities on site shall not exceed Noise Rating NR40 at the site 
boundary of the nearest noise sensitive receptor.

Reason; In the interests of the amenity of neighbouring residents to the application site and in 
accordance with Policy NE9 of the Nottingham Local Plan.

5. The area of land between the approved acoustic fence to the rear of the car wash area and 
the rear and side boundaries of the adjoining residential properties on Ventura Drive shall not 
be used for the storage of any items, and shall be kept clear of rubbish at all times that the 
approved use remains in operation.

Reason: In the interests of the amenity of neighbouring residents to the application site and in 
accordance with Policy 10 of the Aligned Core Strategies.

Standard condition- scope of permission

S1. Except as may be modified by the conditions listed above, the development shall be carried 
out in complete accordance with the details described in the forms, drawings and other 
documents comprising the application as validated by the council on 25 April 2018.

Reason: To determine the scope of this permission.

Informatives

 1. The reason for this decision, and a summary of the policies the local planning authority has had 
regard to are set out in the committee report, enclosed herewith and forming part of this decision.

 2. This permission is valid only for the purposes of Part III of the Town & Country Planning Act 
1990. It does not remove the need to obtain any other consents that may be necessary, nor does it 

2

Regulatory/ongoing conditions
(Conditions relating to the subsequent use of the development and other regulatory matters)

Page 51



Continued…DRAFT ONLY
Not for issue

imply that such other consents will necessarily be forthcoming. It does not override any restrictions 
contained in the deeds to the property or the rights of neighbours. You are advised to check what 
other restrictions there are and what other consents may be needed, for example from the 
landowner, statutory bodies and neighbours.  This permission is not an approval under the Building 
Regulations.

Where a condition specified in this decision notice requires any further details to be submitted for 
approval, please note that an application fee will be payable at the time such details are submitted 
to the City Council. A form is available from the City Council for this purpose.

Your attention is drawn to the rights of appeal set out on the attached sheet.

3

Page 52



- 4 -

DRAFT ONLY
Not for issue

RIGHTS OF APPEAL
Application No: 18/00809/PFUL3 (PP-06921311)

If the applicant is aggrieved by the decision of the City Council to impose conditions on the grant of 
permission for the proposed development, then he or she can appeal to the Secretary of State under 
section 78 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

Any appeal must be submitted within six months of the date of this notice.  You can obtain an appeal 
form from the Customer Support Unit, The Planning Inspectorate, Room 3/15 Eagle Wing, Temple 
Quay House, 2 The Square, Temple Quay, Bristol, BS1 6PN.  Phone: 0117 372 6372.  Appeal forms 
can also be downloaded from the Planning Inspectorate website at http://www.planning-
inspectorate.gov.uk/pins/index.htm.  Alternatively, the Planning Inspectorate have introduced an 
online appeals service which you can use to make your appeal online. You can find the service 
through the Appeals area of the Planning Portal - see www.planningportal.gov.uk/pcs.

The Inspectorate will publish details of your appeal on the internet (on the Appeals area of the 
Planning Portal).  This may include a copy of the original planning application form and relevant 
supporting documents supplied to the local authority by you or your agent, together with the 
completed appeal form and information you submit to the Planning Inspectorate.  Please ensure that 
you only provide information, including personal information belonging to you that you are happy will 
be made available to others in this way.  If you supply personal information belonging to a third party 
please ensure you have their permission to do so.  More detailed information about data protection 
and privacy matters is available on the Planning Portal.

The Secretary of State can allow a longer period for giving notice of an appeal, but will not normally 
be prepared to use this power unless there are special circumstances which excuse the delay.

The Secretary of State need not consider an appeal if the City Council could not for legal reasons 
have granted permission or approved the proposals without the conditions it imposed.

In practice, the Secretary of State does not refuse to consider appeals solely because the City 
Council based its decision on a direction given by him.

PURCHASE NOTICES

If either the City Council or the Secretary of State refuses permission to develop land or grants it 
subject to conditions, the owner may claim that he can neither put the land to a reasonably beneficial 
use in its existing state nor can he render the land capable of a reasonably beneficial use by the 
carrying out of any development which has been or would be permitted. This procedure is set out in 
Part VI of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

COMPENSATION

In certain limited circumstances, a claim may be made against the City Council for compensation 
where permission is refused or granted subject to conditions by the Secretary of State. The 
circumstances in which compensation is payable are set out in Section 114 of the Town & Country 
Planning Act 1990.
  

Page 53



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
WARDS AFFECTED: Wollaton West  Item No:  
 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 
20th June 2018  

 
 
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF PLANNING AND REGENERATION 
 
54 Charlecote Drive, Nottingham 
 
1 SUMMARY 
 
Application No: 17/02748/PFUL3 for planning permission 

 
Application by: AD Planning Services Limited on behalf of Mr Jana Kingsely 

 
Proposal: Two storey extension to the front and side, and single storey rear 

extension 
 
The application is brought to Committee at the request of a Local Ward Councillor who, on 
balance, is not in agreement with the proposed recommendation.  
 
To meet the Council's Performance Targets this application should have been determined 
by 30th January 2018.  
 
2 RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

REFUSE PLANNING PERMISSION for the reasons set out in the draft decision 
notice at the end of this report. 

 
3 BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 54 Charlecote Drive is a detached dwelling located on the north side of the street. It 

has a double height bay to its left hand side and alongside this, the roof slopes 
down to groundfloor level. To the side of the property is a garage which is linked to 
the house.  

 
3.2 The property shares common boundaries with 52 and 56 Charlecote Drive and 263 

and 265 Wollaton Vale to the rear.  
 
4 DETAILS OF THE PROPOSAL 
 
4.1 Permission is sought for a two storey extension to the front and side of the dwelling 

and a single storey extension to the rear. The front and side extensions would 
result in the long sloping roof to the front of the property and garage being 
removed, to be replaced by a two storey front elevation aligned with the original 
bay, although recessed by a nominal amount. The original hipped roof is carried 
over the extension with a smaller, projecting hipped roof feature on the right hand 
side, to match that on the original bay. The central area between these has a flat 
roof. The extension to the rear projects 4m with a lean to roof. 

 
4.2 Since the application was initially submitted, officers have been in discussions with 

the applicants to try to resolve concerns regarding the scale and design of the two 

Page 55

Agenda Item 4c



 
storey front and side extension. A number of alternative proposals have been 
submitted, the latest of which is presented for determination. 

 
5 CONSULTATIONS AND OBSERVATIONS OF OTHER OFFICERS 
 

Adjoining occupiers consulted: 
 
45, 47, 52 and 56 Charlecote Drive and 263 and 265 Wollaton Vale.  
 
These neighbouring properties were consulted on the original proposal and have 
been re-consulted on the proposal subject to this report. The second consultation 
period expired on 9th June 2018.  
 
As a consequence of the latest consultation, one verbal objection has been 
received over the telephone on behalf of a local resident who wished to remain 
anonymous. The objection received raised concern that the proposal would be a 
significant overdevelopment of the site when taking into account the road and the 
area, and that the proposal would be inconsistent with the surrounding houses. 

 
No other comments or representations have been received from neighbouring 
properties in relation to the proposal.  
 
A local Ward Councillor has provided comments and indicated that on balance the 
application should not be refused. To summarise the ward councillor raises the 
following matters: - 

 
i) The gaps between houses on the street that have been extended vary 

considerably, some are as little as 300mm and some have no gap at all. The 
gap in this application is 590mm  

ii) There will not be any eaves on number 54 as the fascia will sit flush with the 
wall, with the guttering on top. The gap will stay the same all the way up 
(there are other houses on the street with this arrangement) 

iii) There will not be a terracing effect as number 54 will be set back from the 
main side wall of number 52 by 500mm, and by over 1 metre when taking 
number 52’s bay into account. Also the gap between numbers 54 and 56 is 
over 2 metres  

iv) The dominant bays are the only defining character in the street and will 
remain so in this application 

v) Any compromise on detail could be discussed as conditions of the approval 
vi) It is noted that there have been no representations to date 
vii) No two houses are identical in this street. There is a variety to the design of 

dwellings in the street scene, and no uniform layout in terms of the location 
of dwellings within their plot 

 
6 RELEVANT POLICIES AND GUIDANCE 
 

National Planning Policy Framework 
 
The NPPF advises that there is a presumption in favour of sustainable development 
and that development which is sustainable should be approved. Paragraph 17 of 
the NPPF lists the core planning principles that should underpin decision taken on 
planning applications. Of particular relevance to this application are paragraphs 56 
to 66 which advise of the need to secure high quality design and a good standard of 
amenity for all existing and future occupants of land and buildings.  

Page 56



 
 

Aligned Core Strategy (ACS) (September 2014) 
 
Policy 10: Design and Enhancing Local Identity - new development should be 
designed to create an attractive, safe, inclusive and healthy environment.  

 
7. APPRAISAL OF PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT 
 
 Main Issues 
  

(i) Impact of the proposal on the street scene  
(ii) Impact on residential amenity 

  
Issue (i) Impact of the proposal on the street scene (Policy 10 of the ACS) 

 
7.1 The principal concern regarding the current proposal is the impact of the scale and 

design of the two storey front and side extension, its proximity to 52 Charlecote 
Drive, and on the appearance of the property and wider street scene. The single 
storey rear extension is considered to be acceptable. 
 

7.2 Policy 10 of the ACS requires new development to be designed so that it responds 
appropriately to its surroundings by considering matters such as plot size, layout 
and spacing between properties, massing, scale and proportions, and architectural 
style and detailing.  
 

7.3 The changes proposed to the front elevation of the dwelling would be 
disproportionate to the scale of the existing property and would appear cramped in 
relation to the neighbouring 52. In general terms when extending a property, 
particularly one in a built frontage with a generally consistent scale and density, the 
appropriate approach is to make the extension appear subordinate to the existing 
dwelling, thereby retaining the prominence of the original dwelling and allowing the 
extension to read as a smaller addition. As proposed the extension is visually split 
into three ‘sections’; the existing bay window would be retained to the left hand 
side, a flat roofed middle section and then to the right hand side, an element with 
similar proportions to the existing bay window is proposed. The creation of a 
dwelling with such scale is not in keeping with the existing property or the street 
scene. Currently the dwelling has two ‘sections’ with a single storey garage to the 
side. The dwellings along the street, even those which have been extended, 
generally have either one or two ‘sections’ in visual terms.   
 

7.4 The property would be set at a distance of about 600mm to the boundary with both 
52 and 56 Charlecote Drive. Whilst 56 Charlecote Drive is set away from the 
boundary with 54, 52 sits on the boundary and additionally has deep eaves and a 
chimney breast that project from this side elevation, all of which reduce the 
perceived spacing between the properties. Reference is made in the ward 
councillor’s comments to the applicants not proposing to have projecting eaves on 
this side of the extension, but this is not shown on the latest drawing. 
 

7.5 In this context, the resulting appearance of 54 would appear disproportionately wide 
relative to the width of the plot and unduly cramped in relation to the neighbouring 
property at 52. To address such a concern it would be usual to recess the first floor 
element of the side extension, perhaps with a corresponding reduction in roof 
height. Indeed there are examples along the street where such an approach has 
been taken (the neighbouring 52 being one of these). However, in spite of this 

Page 57



 
suggestion being made by officers, the extension has not been amended in this 
fashion. 
 

7.6 The appearance of the extended property is also felt to be compromised by the 
very deep and wide section of flat roof in the centre of the property, and by the 
misalignment and proportion of windows and doors on the front elevation of the 
proposed extension. The architectural reference to the existing bay window on the 
right hand side of the extension is also felt to reflect poorly when compared to the 
original.  
 

7.7 Overall it is considered that the changes to the front elevation would result in a 
dwelling that would not sit comfortably within its plot and which as a result of its 
massing, scale, proportions, architectural style and detailing, would appear 
incongruous in the street scene. The proposal would not therefore comply with 
Policy 10 of the ACS.  

 
Issue (ii) Impact on residential amenity (Policy 10 of the ACS) 

 
7.8 Having regard to the design, scale, location and outlook from the proposed 

extensions, and their relationship with the site boundaries, it is considered that the 
proposal would have an acceptable impact on neighbouring properties in terms of 
privacy, daylight, sunlight and outlook. The proposal in relation to impact on 
residential amenity therefore complies with Policy 10 of the Aligned Core Strategy. 

 
8. SUSTAINABILITY / BIODIVERSITY 
 

The proposal raises no issues in regards to sustainability and biodiversity.  
 
9 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 

None. 
 

10 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
The issues raised in this report are primarily ones of planning judgement. Should 
legal considerations arise these will be addressed at the meeting. 
 

11 EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
None.  
 

12 RISK MANAGEMENT ISSUES 
 
None. 
 

13 STRATEGIC PRIORITIES 
 
Transforming Nottingham Neighbours – Helping to support sustainable 
communities by meeting family needs. 
 

14 CRIME AND DISORDER ACT IMPLICATIONS 
 
None. 
 

Page 58



 
15 VALUE FOR MONEY 

 
None. 
 

16 List of background papers other than published works or those disclosing 
confidential or exempt information 
 
1. Application No: 17/02748/PFUL3 - link to online case file: 
http://publicaccess.nottinghamcity.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=P0H7GVLYIMP00 
 

17 Published documents referred to in compiling this report 
 
Nottingham Local Plan (November 2005) 
 
Contact Officer:  
Ms Jenny Cole, Case Officer, Development Management.  
Email: jenny.cole@nottinghamcity.gov.uk.      Telephone: 0115 8764027 

Page 59

http://publicaccess.nottinghamcity.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=P0H7GVLYIMP00


Key
°0 0.02 0.04 km

NOMAD printed map

© Crown copyright and database right 2018. Ordnance Survey Licence number 100019317. NOMAD print generated by a NOMAD user on 11/06/2018.
THIS MAP IS UNSUITABLE FOR PUBLICATION: contact gi@nottinghamcity.gov.uk (ext. 64341) for high quality maps.

City Boundary No description provided
Description

Copyright Nottingham City Council, Crown Copyright and database right 2018. Ordnance Survey Licence number 100019317

Page 60



- 1 -

Continued…DRAFT ONLY
Not for issue

My Ref: 17/02748/PFUL3 (PP-06581548)

Your Ref:

Contact: Mr James Clark

Email: development.management@nottinghamcity.gov.uk

AD Planning Services Limited
FAO: Mr Hans Zollinger-Ball
The Office
Knights Yard
Gaol Street
Oakham
LE15 6AQ

Development Management
City Planning
Loxley House
Station Street
Nottingham
NG2 3NG

Tel: 0115 8764447
www.nottinghamcity.gov.uk

Date of decision: 
TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING ACT 1990
APPLICATION FOR PLANNING PERMISSION

Application No: 17/02748/PFUL3 (PP-06581548)
Application by: Mr Jana Kingsely
Location: 54 Charlecote Drive, Nottingham, NG8 2SB
Proposal: Two storey extensions to the front and side and single storey extension to the 

rear

Nottingham City Council as Local Planning Authority hereby REFUSES PLANNING PERMISSION 
for the development described in the above application for the following reason(s):-

 1. Due to its inappropriate scale, design and detailing, the proposed two storey front and side 
extension would be harmful to the character and appearance of the exisiting dwelling and wider 
street scene, appearing disproportionate to the scale of the existing property and its plot width, and 
cramped in relation to the neighbouring 52 Charlecote Drive. The proposal would therefore not 
comply with Policy 10 of the ACS.

Notes

Your attention is drawn to the rights of appeal set out on the attached sheet.

Page 61



- 2 -

DRAFT ONLY
Not for issue

RIGHTS OF APPEAL
Application No: 17/02748/PFUL3 (PP-06581548)

If the applicant is aggrieved by the decision of the City Council to refuse permission for the proposed 
development, then he or she can appeal to the Secretary of State under section 78 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990.

Any appeal must be submitted within twelve weeks of the date of this notice.  You can obtain an 
appeal form from the Customer Support Unit, The Planning Inspectorate, Room 3/15 Eagle Wing, 
Temple Quay House, 2 The Square, Temple Quay, Bristol, BS1 6PN.  Phone: 0117 372 6372.  
Appeal forms can also be downloaded from the Planning Inspectorate website at http://www.planning-
inspectorate.gov.uk/pins/index.htm.  Alternatively, the Planning Inspectorate have introduced an 
online appeals service which you can use to make your appeal online. You can find the service 
through the Appeals area of the Planning Portal - see www.planningportal.gov.uk/pcs.

The Inspectorate will publish details of your appeal on the internet (on the Appeals area of the 
Planning Portal).  This may include a copy of the original planning application form and relevant 
supporting documents supplied to the local authority by you or your agent, together with the 
completed appeal form and information you submit to the Planning Inspectorate.  Please ensure that 
you only provide information, including personal information belonging to you that you are happy will 
be made available to others in this way.  If you supply personal information belonging to a third party 
please ensure you have their permission to do so.  More detailed information about data protection 
and privacy matters is available on the Planning Portal.

The Secretary of State can allow a longer period for giving notice of an appeal, but will not normally 
be prepared to use this power unless there are special circumstances which excuse the delay.

The Secretary of State need not consider an appeal if the City Council could not for legal reasons 
have granted permission or approved the proposals without the conditions it imposed.

In practice, the Secretary of State does not refuse to consider appeals solely because the City 
Council based its decision on a direction given by him.

PURCHASE NOTICES

If either the City Council or the Secretary of State refuses permission to develop land or grants it 
subject to conditions, the owner may claim that he can neither put the land to a reasonably beneficial 
use in its existing state nor can he render the land capable of a reasonably beneficial use by the 
carrying out of any development which has been or would be permitted. This procedure is set out in 
Part VI of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

COMPENSATION

In certain limited circumstances, a claim may be made against the City Council for compensation 
where permission is refused or granted subject to conditions by the Secretary of State. The 
circumstances in which compensation is payable are set out in Section 114 of the Town & Country 
Planning Act 1990. 

Page 62


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4a 100 Woodyard Lane
	REPORT OF CHIEF PLANNER
	REPORT OF CHIEF PLANNER

	4b Site Of Apollo Hotel PH, Hucknall Lane
	REPORT OF CHIEF PLANNER

	4c 54 Charlecote Drive
	REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF PLANNING AND REGENERATION
	REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF PLANNING AND REGENERATION




